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Founded in 1888 by Dr. Wallace Calvin Abbott, a Chicago
physician, Abbott Laboratories is a broad-based health care
company that discovers, develops, manufactures and markets
products and services that span the continuum of care —
from prevention and diagnosis to treatment and cure.
Abbott’s principal businesses include pharmaceuticals and
medical products, including devices, diagnostic tests and
instruments, and nutritionals for children and adults.

Headquartered in north suburban Chicago, Abbott serves
customers in more than 130 countries, with a staff of
70,000-plus at more than 135 manufacturing, distribution,
research and development, and other locations.
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On the cover: Chicago native, Tecela Harris, first experienced symptoms of rheumatoid arthritis at her senior prom, when the pain in
her joints was unbearable. After 18 years of trying numerous medicines without improvement, Tecela was prescribed Humira. With just
two injections, she experienced a dramatic improvement and has energy again — working full time, spending time with her husband,
caring for her newborn son, and taking walks with her father.



Sound financial performance.

Success of our largest-ever global

product launch. Excellent growth

in pharmaceuticals. Reshaping

of our medical products business

and creation of a new hospital

products company.

For Abbott, 2003 was a year of

ongoing progress in helping

people live longer, healthier lives.
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To our shareholders:

Our company performed well in
2003. We delivered strong results
for the year. We achieved all of our
major goals. We prepared Abbott for
higher levels of long-term growth.

In the face of difficult global
economic conditions, an intensely
competitive environment and rapid
market changes that are redefining
health care, we took steps to
strengthen our business portfolio.
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Our accomplishments include:

• The launch of Humira, our breakthrough treatment

for rheumatoid arthritis;

• The realignment of our Medical Products Group to

support improved growth;

• Our decision to create an independent, publicly

traded hospital products company;

• The determination of substantial conformity with the

Quality System Regulation in our Lake County, Ill.,

diagnostic manufacturing operations; and

• A number of targeted acquisitions that support our

broad-based health care model and execution of our

long-term growth strategy.

Our growth strategy is defined by an operational focus

on innovation and the use of advanced technologies to

make a clear difference in the lives of patients and a

marketing focus on higher-growth, highly innovative

products and businesses. In putting this strategy to work,

we have balanced the resulting investment needs with

Miles D. White
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
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evolving environmental pressures, your expectations for a

solid return on your investment in Abbott and the need to

provide a supportive workplace for our employees, as our

results show.

Strong financial results

Driven by double-digit sales growth, with especially

strong contributions from our Pharmaceutical Products

Group, we met our targets in 2003 for ongoing earnings

per share. At the same time, we met our commitment

to significantly increase investment in our R&D pro-

grams, as well as our sales and marketing initiatives.

We increased both at double-digit rates, fueling the

engine for future growth.

In 2003, sales grew 11.3 percent to reach a record $19.7

billion. Abbott also recorded its 320th consecutive quar-

terly dividend paid to shareholders since 1924. The value

of Abbott stock grew 16.5 percent, and the company’s

total market value reached $70 billion, rising by more

than $10 billion. Coupled with a steady increase in our

dividend, this price appreciation ensured that Abbott’s

total shareholder return once again exceeded that of the

S&P Health Care Index, the fourth time in the last five

years we have achieved this distinction. For the five years

ending on Dec. 31, Abbott stock performed in the top

quartile of our peer group, reflecting the market’s confi-

dence in our long-term growth strategy.

However, despite these and other significant achieve-

ments, the health care environment continued to test

Abbott and our peers throughout the year. Chief among

these challenges was the global economic slowdown and

its effect on health care spending. As a result, govern-

ments in virtually every developed country in the world

are rethinking and sometimes reducing the levels at which

they will reimburse health care companies for their prod-

ucts. Even in the United States, where signs of economic

improvement emerged late in the year, state governments

are tightening health care spending. In response, we

are helping key decision makers understand that our

products represent only a small fraction of total health

care costs and that, in fact, they can help reduce these costs.

For example, spending on prescription drugs continues to

account for only about 10 cents of every health care dollar

spent in the United States, according to the Centers for

Medicare and Medicaid Services. In addition, each dollar

spent on new medicines reduces nondrug health care

costs, such as hospital expenditures and physician office

visits, by more than $6, according to a study by a

Columbia University economist. Continued medical inno-

vation is critical to reducing health care costs long term.

This is why we continue to support protection of patents

and medical liability reform, and more equitable assump-

tion of R&D costs among countries outside of the United

States, where price controls often dampen R&D invest-

ment incentives. Improvement in each of these areas is

critical to continued innovation.

Continuing momentum in pharmaceuticals

Much of our success in 2003 was driven by the outstanding

performance of our Pharmaceutical Products Group,

where our ongoing efforts to transform this business

continued to deliver dividends. Humira stands out among

many examples of our success in this area. Launched in

January and approved for the treatment of rheumatoid
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arthritis (RA) in 38 countries around the world, its first-

year sales of $280 million exceeded our initial expectations.

As it gains approval in still more countries and as we

pursue additional indications for its use, we expect Humira

peak-year sales to reach more than $1 billion for the

RA indication alone. Sales for additional indications now

in development have the potential to reach more than

$1 billion in additional annual sales.

The success of Humira complemented double-digit growth

by virtually all of the major branded pharmaceuticals,

including Biaxin, Omnicef, Synthroid, TriCor, Mobic,

Flomax and Kaletra. Improved growth in pharmaceuticals,

driven by especially strong Kaletra sales and the launch of

Humira, also contributed to our solid international results,

along with improved sales in nutritionals.

To further strengthen this business and sustain this suc-

cess, we invested $1.1 billion of our more than $1.7 billion

total R&D budget for 2003 in pharmaceutical R&D,

representing an increase of more than 10 percent. We are

also creating the Global Pharmaceutical Operations

organization, bringing together manufacturing and sup-

port functions from a number of areas to better support

the world-class, integrated global pharmaceuticals business

we are building. Affirming the value of this work, we

delivered seven drug candidates from discovery to devel-

opment this past year and have doubled the number of

quality drug candidates generated by our discovery opera-

tions compared to just a few years ago.

Improving momentum in medical products

Progress in accelerating growth in our Medical Products

Group was marked by the introduction of a new reporting

structure in 2004 and the acquisition of businesses in

higher-growth markets. This new structure provides for

independent operation of each of the group’s businesses

and is designed to drive higher growth by improving

focus, productivity and market responsiveness. Building

on our commitment to a broad-based approach to health

care that is rooted in science, we also made a number of

targeted acquisitions that will help us extend the value of

advanced medical technology. Among these acquisitions,

the coronary and endovascular products from Jomed N.V.

expands our line of devices used in the treatment of the

heart and surrounding arteries, while increasing our

international presence in this business.

In addition, we acquired Integrated Vascular Systems

Inc., bringing us a next-generation vessel closure device

that is easier for physicians to use and allows patients to

leave the hospital earlier. Targeting another market seg-

ment with significant growth opportunities, we acquired

Spinal Concepts Inc., which makes and sells plates,

screws and rods that are used in spinal surgery. Toward

the same end, in our Ross Products Division, we added

ZonePerfect Nutrition Co., a leading marketer of

et sales orld ide

. . .   

(dollars in billions)
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(dollars in billions)

nutrition bars and other products for active people,

positioning the company in the rapidly growing “healthy

living” nutritionals segment.

Recently, we completed the acquisition of i-STAT Corp.,

which targets the high-growth, point-of-care diagnostics

market, as well as announced an agreement to acquire

TheraSense Inc., a leader in blood glucose monitoring

devices, complementing our MediSense blood glucose

monitoring business.

Further supporting our focus on higher-growth products

and businesses, we announced plans to spin off most of

our core global hospital products business. This move will

enable us to devote more energy to advanced-technology

medical products and new pharmaceuticals. At the same

time, it will position the new company as the only one of

its size focused solely on the hospital customer, with the

freedom to invest and expand according to its own

growth strategy.

As a result, you and other Abbott shareholders will have

equity investments in two separate, strong companies that

will now be able to work exclusively on maximizing

unique opportunities in their markets. We believe that

this will ultimately generate stronger growth for both

companies. The new company, named Hospira, is

scheduled to begin operating independently in the first

half of 2004. Chris Begley, who has served as senior vice

president of our Hospital Products Division, will lead

Hospira as its CEO. We wish Chris and the 14,000

employees from across Abbott who will work for the

new company all the best in this exciting new venture.

Strengthening the enterprise

While we made many improvements in our two operating

groups this past year, we also strengthened the whole of

Abbott. For example, in the process of improving our quali-

ty systems at our Lake County, Ill., diagnostic facilities, we

completed reviews of all of our operations to ensure the

highest levels of manufacturing compliance and quality. We

also continued to improve ethics and compliance oversight

and training across Abbott. In addition, we resolved allega-

tions regarding sales and marketing practices in our enteral

nutritionals business that were part of a larger investigation

into industrywide practices that date back to the 1980s.

ash di idends
declared per share



As part of our ongoing work to shape a more supportive

workplace, we added new mentoring networks for minor-

ity employees, building on our successful diversity and

inclusion initiatives.

Looking beyond our own operations, we extended our

commitment to global citizenship. Among other efforts,

we broke ground in 2003 on a clinic for the treatment

of HIV/AIDS patients at the largest public hospital in

Tanzania, a country that has been ravaged by the pandemic.

And while passage of the historic Medicare prescription

drug legislation in the United States promises much need-

ed relief for seniors and the disabled, we will continue to

participate in the industry’s Together Rx product discount

program until provisions of the law are in full effect.

Together Rx provides qualifying Medicare enrollees with

discounts on more than 170 branded and generic drugs,

including 14 Abbott drugs. Our participation in this

program has helped participants save $266 million. We

also will continue the Abbott Patient Assistance Program,

which in 2003 had provided approximately $70 million

in free medicines to individuals in financial need.

Abbott people

People are the foundation of Abbott’s strength and

success, and David A. Jones stands out among those who

have contributed at the highest levels to our company.

David, co-founder and chairman of Humana Inc., retired

this past year from our board of directors after more

than 20 years of outstanding service. However, he will be

taking on a new position as chairman of the board of

Hospira. We thank David for his many years of dedication

and counsel and congratulate him on his new role.

Also announcing his retirement this year was Gary L. Flynn,

former senior vice president of our Ross Products

Division. Gary’s 33-year Abbott career was marked by

outstanding contributions in each of his many roles with

the company. We wish him the very best in the years

ahead. At the same time, we welcome Gary E. McCullough,

who assumes leadership of Ross Products, joining

Abbott from the Wrigley Co. We also congratulate

Joseph M. Nemmers, who was named senior vice

president of our Diagnostic Operations, and welcome

Richard W. Ashley to the new position of executive

vice president, Corporate Development.

Throughout the year, Abbott’s more than 70,000 employ-

ees around the world responded to the challenges of

the environment and the marketplace in a manner that

would make their predecessors proud. They assimilated

the many changes that occured throughout the year, while

maintaining a singular focus on our primary customer,

the patient.

Together, we have adapted to today’s new health care envi-

ronment and will continue to make adjustments as needed

to execute our strategy for delivering steady and reliable

growth over the long term. In the process, we continue

to evolve into a more focused, broad-based health care

company. We are stronger than we have ever been in our

116-year history, and we are better positioned than ever to

serve our patients, our customers and all of our stakeholders.

  . 
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

February 27, 2004
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Hospira: A new company with

The spin-off of Abbott’s core hospital
products business creates an industry leader
with a promising future.
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A running start
In August 2003, Abbott announced its plan
to spin off its core hospital products busi-
ness by establishing a new company that
will be one of the leading manufacturers
of hospital products worldwide. Named
Hospira, the new company will focus
on maximizing its leading positions in
medication delivery systems and critical
care products, specialty pharmaceuticals,
and contract manufacturing services.
Headquartered in Lake Forest, Ill., Hospira
will have approximately 14,000 employees
and an extensive network of manufacturing
plants and distribution centers worldwide.
Abbott expects to complete the spin-off of
Hospira in the first half of 2004. The spin-
off is subject to final approval by Abbott’s
board of directors.

A strong foundation
Hospira will launch with approximately
$2.4 billion in sales and a nearly 70-year
legacy of experience in the hospital indus-
try. It will continue to serve its customers
with a leading portfolio of hospital prod-
ucts, broad and unique manufacturing
capabilities, and new technology solutions
to improve medication delivery and safety
management. In 2003, this position was
reinforced with the implementation of one
of the most comprehensive bar-coding
efforts in the industry; the elimination
of needles from its line of infusion therapy
products; and the introduction of Abbott
MedNet drug library software, which
will set a new standard for medication
management in hospitals.

Hospira’s solid financial profile, combined
with its expertise in the hospital setting,
will provide it with the foundation from
which to pursue new avenues of growth.

New opportunities for growth
As an independent entity, Hospira will
have the strategic, financial and operational
flexibility to seize new opportunities to
expand its business. For example, with only
15 percent of current revenues coming
from outside the United States, global
expansion represents a significant growth
opportunity. Additionally, favorable
demographics due to the aging baby
boomer generation will drive demand in
the hospital market and support a stronger
presence across Hospira’s core businesses.



70 years of experience.

Christopher B. Begley, named CEO, Hospira
and David A. Jones, named

Chairman of the Board, Hospira
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Hospira will bring proven
leadership to the hospital
products business. As an
independent company, we will
focus on our customers, grow
our business and deliver value
to our shareholders.”

— Christopher B. Begley,
President, Hospital Products Division;

named CEO of Hospira

“



Evolving
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Abbott looks very different than it did even five years ago.

Our deliberate, strategic reshaping continued in 2003.

Changes — including the planned spin-off of much of our

core global hospital products business, a new organizational

structure in 2004 in our Medical Products Group, and the

addition of new businesses — further refined and strength-

ened our successful broad-based health care model.

These changes create opportunities for our company

to succeed in a rapidly changing and intensely competitive

health care environment. In both our global pharmaceuticals

and medical products businesses, we’re transforming Abbott

through higher-growth, highly innovative opportunities.

Our goal is to find the right balance between size and agility,

delivering stable and reliable growth to our shareholders.

With each year, Abbott evolves into a stronger health care

competitor — focused on delivering the best health care

solutions to those we serve.



June 2000
Launched
Precision Xtra
blood glucose
monitor

Sept. 2000
Received FDA
approval for
Kaletra for the
treatment of
HIV/AIDS

March 2001
Acquired
BASF’s
pharmaceutical
business,
including
the global
operations
of Knoll

Oct. 2001
Launched
TriCor tablets,
an improved
formulation of
TriCor with a
new indication

Dec. 2001
Acquired Vysis
Inc., a leading
genomic
disease
management
company

May 2002
Acquired
Biocompatibles
International
plc’s stent
business

June 2002
Formed an
alliance with
Celera
Diagnostics to
develop and
market molec-
ular diagnostic
products

July 2002
Received
FDA approval
for Synthroid,
trusted for
more than
40 years to
control thyroid
disease

Major Abbott Milestones

A growing, broad-  base
Pharmaceutical Products Group

Outstanding science, strong global brands

AIDS/Antivirals
Anesthesia

Anti-infectives
Cardiology

Gastrointestinal
Immunology

Metabolic Disease
Neuroscience and Pain Management

Pediatric and Specialty Pharmaceuticals
Renal Disease

Urology and Reproductive Health

Marketed products portfolio:
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-  based portfolio
Medical Products Group

Operating businesses:

Abbott Diagnostics
i-STAT Point-of-Care

MediSense Blood Glucose Monitoring

Abbott Molecular Diagnostics
Ross Products

Spinal Concepts

Abbott Vascular Devices
Animal Health

    

Dec. 2002
Received FDA
approval to
market Humira
for the
treatment of
rheumatoid
arthritis

June 2003
Acquired
Spinal
Concepts Inc.,
maker of
spinal fixation
products

June 2003
Expanded
Abbott
Vascular
Devices’ global
presence
through the
acquisition
of Jomed N.V.’s
coronary and
endovascular
product lines

Aug. 2003
Broadened
nutritionals
business
through the
acquisition of
ZonePerfect
Nutrition Co.

Aug. 2003
Announced
plans to
spin off core
global hospital
products
business into
new separate
public
company, to
be named
Hospira

Sept. 2003
Received
approval in
the European
Union to mar-
ket Humira for
the treatment
of rheumatoid
arthritis

Dec. 2003
Announced
acquisition
of i-STAT Corp.,
a leading
manufacturer
of point-of-care
diagnostic
systems for
blood analysis;
completed in
Jan. 2004

Jan. 2004
Announced
plans to acquire
TheraSense Inc.,
broadening
current blood
glucose moni-
toring product
line

Building higher-growth, highly innovative businesses
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Global
Momentum

Pharmaceutical Products Group
Abbott’s global pharmaceuticals
business delivered another year of
outstanding performance in 2003,
while continuing to invest in the
discovery and development of new
therapies for chronic diseases.
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Jeffrey M. Leiden, M.D., Ph.D.
President and Chief Operating Officer,

Pharmaceutical Products Group,
Chief Scientific Officer
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Humira:
Abbott’s largest-ever global
product launch

Humira reduces the often painful and disabling symptoms of
rheumatoid arthritis (RA) by slowing down the inflammation
process and inhibiting joint deterioration. After Humira was
FDA approved on Dec. 31, 2002, it quickly became an
important treatment option for the more than 5 million
patients with RA worldwide:

• May 2003: Strong market acceptance and
prescription trends prompted Abbott to raise
Humira worldwide sales expectations to
more than $250 million for 2003.

• September 2003: Abbott received approval for
Humira in Europe. By year end, Humira was
approved in 38 countries.

• December 2003: Humira surpassed 2003
worldwide sales expectations at $280 million.

• January 2004: Abbott raises its 2004 worldwide sales forecast
to more than $700 million, and continues to expect
peak-year sales of more than $1 billion for the RA
indication alone.

Humira is administered subcutaneously once every other
week and is available in a ready-to-use, pre-filled syringe that
was specially designed for use by people whose hands may be
affected by RA, making it easier for them to self-administer
their medication at home.

The Humira “Pipeline”
A significant clinical trial program is under way examining
the potential of Humira in many autoimmune diseases.
These indications have the potential to add more than
$1 billion in additional annual sales:

• Psoriasis

• Psoriatic arthritis

• Ankylosing spondylitis

• Juvenile RA

• Crohn’s disease 



With the creation of Hospira, the
branded hospital pharmaceuticals that
were part of the hospital products
business have been integrated into the
Pharmaceutical Products Group as of
Jan. 1, 2004. These include the anesthe-
sia agent, Ultane, and the vitamin D
therapy, Zemplar.

Kaletra increased its position as
the world’s number-one protease
inhibitor for treating HIV/AIDS
due to its excellent efficacy and
long-term viral suppression.
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TriCor is the market-leading
fenofibrate for reducing choles-
terol and high triglycerides,
and Tarka and Mavik are two
promising medications for
reducing high blood pressure.

Synthroid is the number-one-
prescribed treatment for
hypothyroidism and the second-
most-prescribed medication in
the United States. Flomax is the
market-leading drug for benign
prostatic hyperplasia (BPH).
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Depakote ER, the
once-a-day version
of Depakote, is used
to treat epilepsy and
prevent migraine
headaches. Depakote
also treats bipolar
disorder.

Omnicef — Three-year-old Sammy Hunt suffered from occasional ear infections. Omnicef,
a better-tasting, oral suspension antibiotic, effectively treated Sammy’s ear infections and has
become the fastest-growing branded oral antibiotic in the United States.

Biaxin XL and Omnicef are part of
Abbott’s more than $1 billion world-
wide anti-infective franchise. Omnicef
is offered in a strawberry cream flavor
that children prefer.



Global Pharmaceuticals
2003 Year in Review
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Humira — Tabbasum Rauf of Ireland had joints

so swollen from rheumatoid arthritis that she

could hardly get out of bed. Approved in Europe

in September, Humira allowed Tabbasum to regain

her mobility and strength — returning her to a

more normal life.

Evolving into a more globally integrated
pharmaceuticals business
Abbott’s Pharmaceutical Products Group is consolidating
functions worldwide to take advantage of its resources and
size to achieve greater productivity and efficiency.

The Pharmaceutical Products Group is becoming a globally
integrated organization, benefiting patients, employees and
shareholders. We’ve integrated functions that were separate,
such as pharmaceutical research and development, and are
continuing to integrate other functions, such as manufacturing
operations, into a single global structure with common goals
and priorities. Today, Abbott’s pharmaceuticals business has
an industry-competitive pipeline and a highly disciplined
decision-making process that’s focused on five therapeutic
areas of discovery. Abbott is also a leader in advanced
technologies with industry-leading drug discovery groups
in biologics and small molecules.

We’re continuing to recruit and retain top pharmaceutical
talent at all levels. At the same time, we’re investing in our
talented marketing and sales organizations to enhance
Abbott’s commercial execution worldwide.

As a result, our U.S. pharmaceuticals business achieved
greater than 20 percent sales growth in 2003, driven by more
than 10 global brands, each with peak-year sales potential of
greater than $500 million.

Humira: A great start in the United States;
significant global potential
Approved by the FDA in December 2002, Humira is Abbott’s
breakthrough treatment for use in patients with rheumatoid
arthritis (RA). The first fully human monoclonal antibody
approved for RA, Humira mimics an antibody that blocks a
protein called tumor necrosis factor (TNF). TNF contributes
to the joint inflammation and bone erosion found in RA

patients. By blocking TNF, Humira inhibits the progression
of structural damage and offers symptom relief so that
patients can return to living more normal lives.

The 2003 U.S. launch of Humira was well-executed, captur-
ing approximately 20 percent of new prescriptions by year
end within the self-injectable segment. Humira received final
marketing authorization from regulatory authorities in
the European Union in the third quarter of 2003 and was
immediately launched in the United Kingdom and Germany.
In 2004, one of the company’s top priorities is the full
international roll-out of Humira, which is now approved
for sale in 38 countries.

RA is an autoimmune disease that afflicts more than
5 million adults worldwide. At the end of 2003, more than
50,000 people benefited from Humira around the world.
In addition, Humira is the most convenient anti-TNF
therapy with less frequent (every-other-week) dosing and
the added advantage of at-home self-injection from a
ready-to-use, pre-filled syringe. Our Medicare Assistance
Program has provided this life-changing therapy at no
cost to thousands of Medicare-eligible seniors without
prescription drug coverage.

Europe is an emerging market for anti-TNFs such as Humira.
With a lower anti-TNF market penetration than the United
States and the acceptance of these treatments among physi-
cians on the rise, the potential exists for rapid market growth.
In fact, early drug access programs in Europe have enrolled
more than 10,000 Humira patients as of year-end 2003.

For the full-year 2003, Humira exceeded sales expectations,
finishing the year with $280 million in worldwide sales, sig-
nificantly ahead of our initial projection of $200 million.
We continue to forecast strong worldwide sales growth in
2004 to more than $700 million. In its peak year, Humira
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Kaletra — Claudia Graciela of Buenos Aires, Argentina,

was diagnosed with HIV more than a decade ago. After

taking numerous medications, and eventually worsening

and relapsing, her doctor prescribed Kaletra. “Since

then my health has consistently improved. I feel good,

and have my life back.”

sales are projected to reach more than $1 billion for the RA
indication alone, and additional indications currently in
development have the potential to add more than
$1 billion in additional annual sales.

A pipeline within a product
Humira clinical trials progressed through 2003 for early RA,
juvenile RA, psoriatic arthritis, Crohn’s disease, psoriasis and
ankylosing spondylitis. In fact, we recently presented positive
results of our Phase II psoriasis trials at the largest dermatol-
ogy medical meeting in the United States.

These additional indications for Humira represent a pipeline
within a product — ideal because follow-on trials for an
approved drug generally represent much lower risk than new
molecular entities. The potential is significant; each additional
indication represents a several-hundred-million-dollar
market opportunity, while serving important patient needs.

Abbott’s pharma pipeline: A study in dynamic potential
Besides the additional indications for Humira, there are a
number of compounds in Abbott’s pharmaceutical pipeline
with great promise, particularly in oncology.

One of our late-stage drugs, atrasentan, is an oral medication
developed to treat prostate cancer, which afflicts one in six
men. The current treatment options are surgery, radiation or
hormone therapy, all of which have limited efficacy and may
have considerable side effects. Treatments for this common
and potentially terminal disease have not advanced signifi-
cantly in more than six decades.

Atrasentan belongs to a class of drugs designed to block the
activity of endothelin, a protein produced in the body that
stimulates growth and spread of cancer cells. Atrasentan’s
clinical development program includes a Phase III study in
men with hormone refractory disease, where the cancer has

not yet spread to the bone, as well as Phase II studies in
earlier stages of the disease and in combination with other
agents. We also are continuing to explore atrasentan’s
potential in other cancers, including renal cell carcinoma,
ovarian, stomach, brain and nonsmall cell lung cancers.

In addition to atrasentan, our oncology pipeline includes a
number of promising compounds in earlier stages. ABT-510,
an angiogenesis inhibitor, is in Phase II trials to determine
its efficacy in cancers of the lung and kidney, as well as
sarcoma and lymphoma. Angiogenesis inhibitors interfere
with the formation of blood vessels that feed tumor growth,
essentially starving the tumor of the nutrients required to
grow and metastasize.

Our oncology pipeline contains cytostatic agents, such as
ABT-510 and atrasentan, where the drug targets only the
cancer cells. It also contains more traditional cytotoxic
agents, where the drug is less discriminating about the cells it
attacks. ABT-751 is the leading candidate in the cytotoxic cat-
egory. It belongs to a class of drugs called antimitotic tubulin
antagonists. These compounds inhibit the assembly of micro-
tubules, which play an essential role in cell division, migra-
tion and other functions that enable cancer to grow and
spread. With convenient once-daily oral dosing, ABT-751 is
in trials for colorectal, breast, kidney and lung cancers.

Neuroscience represents one of the largest and least satisfied
pharmaceutical markets. Our scientific research focuses on two
areas of underserved treatment: pain and cognitive disorders.

In the area of pain management, patients often experience a
high level of dissatisfaction with current therapies due to
side effects and a lack of sustained pain relief. This vast,
underserved market represents a significant scientific and
commercial opportunity to develop drugs with greater
efficacy for more challenging chronic pain, more rapid onset
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Zemplar — Walking the Florida waterfront is James Melton’s

favorite pastime. James has kidney disease and is on dialysis.

Zemplar, the most widely used vitamin D therapy in the

United States, treats a condition associated with kidney dis-

ease that can damage the body’s organs and tissues. Zemplar

helps James successfully manage his condition.

and sustained analgesia. Near term, we’re working on
new formulations of recognized brands offering more
convenient dosing and sustained pain relief. In earlier stages
of development, medicines such as ABT-894 and ABT-834,
have the potential to revolutionize the treatment of pain and
cognitive disorders such as Alzheimer’s disease.

Zemplar is Abbott’s vitamin D therapy for the treatment of
secondary hyperparathyroidism, a condition common in
chronic kidney disease (CKD) that, left untreated, can
damage many of the body’s organs and tissues. CKD affects
approximately one in nine adults. Zemplar, the most widely
used injectable vitamin D therapy in the United States, is
administered to end-stage kidney disease patients during
dialysis. In 2004, we expect to file for approval of an oral
formulation of Zemplar, facilitating treatment in patients
during the earlier stages of CKD. As a result, oral Zemplar
has the potential to significantly expand the total worldwide
market opportunity with projected peak-year sales of more
than $500 million.

TAP Pharmaceutical Products Inc., Abbott’s joint venture
with Takeda Chemical Industries Ltd. of Japan, has two
compounds in late-stage development that, combined,
represent significant peak-year sales potential.

Febuxostat is currently in Phase III development for the
management of hyperuricemia in patients with gout. Gout is
caused by high levels of uric acid which, over time, forms
crystals that lodge in the joints, producing painful inflamma-
tion. Febuxostat selectively and potently inhibits the formation
of uric acid, a natural byproduct of human metabolism.

Another late-stage TAP pipeline compound is asoprisnil,
which is being developed for the treatment of uterine fibroids
and endometriosis. Asoprisnil is the first product in a new
class of drugs called selective progesterone receptor modula-

tors. Asoprisnil has the potential to target the major clinical
symptoms of fibroids related to excessive menstrual bleeding
and fibroid size, thereby reducing or eliminating the need
for surgery, such as a hysterectomy. If approved, asoprisnil
would be the first, long-term medical treatment for fibroids.
In the treatment of endometriosis, asoprisnil may reduce the
associated pain and bleeding without affecting estrogen levels.
Asoprisnil is in Phase III clinical trials for treatment of uterine
fibroids and in Phase II for endometriosis.

Continued double-digit growth in core pharmaceuticals
Abbott’s branded pharmaceuticals again delivered strong
performance in 2003, highlighted by strong double-digit
growth in many of the company’s major pharmaceutical
brands, including Kaletra, Synthroid, Omnicef and TriCor.

Kaletra maintained its market leadership in 2003 as the
number-one protease inhibitor worldwide for the treatment
of HIV/AIDS due to its excellent efficacy and unprecedented
long-term viral suppression.

Abbott presented data at the Interscience Conference
on Antimicrobial Agents and Chemotherapy, which demon-
strated that undetectable virus levels can be maintained
out to five years when Kaletra is dosed in combination with
two nucleoside reverse transcriptase inhibitors. We are
studying Kaletra as a once-daily medicine and are exploring
reducing the number of Kaletra capsules per dose to bring
more convenient options to patients. Norvir, Abbott’s first
protease inhibitor, is the preferred agent prescribed in
combination with alternative protease inhibitors to boost
their clinical efficacy.

Synthroid, the second-most-prescribed drug in the United
States, posted double-digit growth in 2003. The product’s
track record of safely treating thyroid disease spans more
than a half century, and patient and physician brand loyalty
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Sevorane — Seven-year-old Andrea Pliego of Mexico

enjoys school, watching movies and taking her drama

lessons. When she had to have her tonsils removed, her

anesthesiologist used Sevorane (Ultane in the United

States), Abbott’s unique anesthesia agent that is gentler

for younger patients, as well as adults.

remains high due to its safety, convenience and low cost.
During 2003, Abbott filed a Citizen Petition at the request of
the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA). The Citizen
Petition seeks to ensure that the methodology used to evalu-
ate potential generic products in this therapeutic area is
sensitive enough to identify clinically significant differences
that may exist among products intended to be interchangeable.

Abbott’s U.S. anti-infective franchise, which includes
Omnicef, Biaxin (Klacid, Klaricid) and Biaxin XL, experienced
growth exceeding 20 percent in 2003. Omnicef, a better-
tasting, oral suspension antibiotic, led the group’s growth. In
early 2004, Omnicef was also recommended as a first-line
treatment option for acute bacterial sinusitis, according to
new sinus and allergy guidelines. Biaxin had double-digit
growth in the United States and Klacid/Klaricid experienced
strong share gains in Europe.

In our cardiology franchise, TriCor continued to perform
exceptionally well, delivering growth of 40 percent for the
year. We also continue to promote the benefits of Tarka, a
nondihydropyridine calcium channel blocker for high blood
pressure. Data published in the Journal of the American
Medical Association demonstrated that a nondihydropyri-
dine calcium channel blocker-based treatment strategy was
equivalent to and potentially better in some patients than
the gold-standard beta blocker regimen.

The anesthesia business continues to deliver strong growth
driven by Ultane, sold as Sevorane outside of the United
States, a widely used, unique inhalation anesthetic for both
inpatient and outpatient procedures.

Flomax remains the most-prescribed treatment for benign
prostatic hyperplasia (BPH), the enlargement of the
prostate. In addition to Flomax, we promote Mobic for
the pain associated with osteoarthritis and Micardis for

hypertension, through our strategic alliance with Boehringer
Ingelheim Pharmaceuticals Inc.

In 2003, our TAP joint venture faced changing market
dynamics with both of its leading brands — Prevacid and
Lupron. Generic entrants into the proton pump inhibitor
class, as well as the launch of an over-the-counter product,
had little impact on the position of Prevacid as the most-
prescribed proton pump inhibitor (treatment for acid reflux
disease). Despite these new market dynamics, Prevacid post-
ed modest sales growth for full-year 2003. TAP also received
FDA approval for Prevacid NapraPAC, a first-of-its-kind
combination pack containing Prevacid and an NSAID for
patients with a history of gastric ulcers, chronically taking an
NSAID for arthritis.

Lupron, TAP’s market-leading synthetic hormone for the treat-
ment of advanced prostate cancer, participates in an increas-
ingly competitive segment of the urology market. Lupron mar-
ket share was challenged by increased pricing pressure, yet TAP
stabilized the market share of Lupron through strategic sales
and marketing initiatives resulting in the continuation of its
market-leading position. Lupron offers patients and physicians
the combined benefits of the latest technology with the assur-
ance of a proven, 17-year track record of safety and efficacy. In
the gynecology market, Lupron continues to be the leading
product in its class with efforts focused at growing the
endometriosis market through patient education.

Pediatric pharmaceuticals deliver strong growth globally
Abbott capitalized on physician relationships and brand
recognition for Synagis, a preventive agent for serious respira-
tory syncytial virus (RSV) infections. Synagis was approved
and successfully launched in Japan in time for the 2003 winter
season. In addition, it received approval for a congenital heart
disease treatment indication in the United States and Europe.
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Reshaped for
Growth

Richard A. Gonzalez
President and Chief Operating Officer,

Medical Products Group

Medical Products Group
Abbott’s medical products
business created a new operating
model, improving its focus,
and added new businesses to
accelerate growth in a diverse
and dynamic marketplace.
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Abbott Vascular Devices
brings together the best in
medical device innovation with
world-class pharmaceuticals to
deliver advanced solutions for
the treatment of cardiovascular
disease. Products include coro-
nary, endovascular and vessel
closure devices.

Spinal Concepts
adds innovation-
driven spinal implant
products to the medical
products portfolio.
These products are used
to help treat disorders,
such as degenerative
disc disease and spinal
stenosis.



    

30

Infant Nutritionals includes a broad line

of infant formula products, including Similac

Advance and Isomil Advance, and older baby

and toddler formulas, Similac 2, Gain and

Grow (outside the United States). Pedialyte is

the number one pediatrician-recommended

oral electrolyte solution for the prevention of

dehydration, and PediaSure provides balanced

nutrition for children.

Healthy Living
With the acquisition
of ZonePerfect and
its nutritional bars
and shakes, Abbott
expanded into the
rapidly growing
healthy living catego-
ry. Ensure was also
introduced in a new,
reclosable bottle to
provide on-the-go
nutrition for healthy
lifestyles.

Ross Products is a world leader
in adult and infant nutrition
committed to helping
people of all ages meet their
nutritional needs.
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Adult Nutritionals
This family of products
includes Ensure, a
source of balanced
nutrition; ProSure, to
help promote weight
gain in people with
cancer; and Glucerna
and Glucerna Weight
Loss Shakes for people
with diabetes.



Abbott Diagnostics
includes AbbottPrism
for blood screening
and Architect for
immunoassay/clinical
chemistry testing.

AbbottPrism — Carmen Chan of Singapore needed a blood transfusion after losing
too much blood giving birth to her son. AbbottPrism, an analyzer designed for
high-volume blood screening, helps ensure the safety of Singapore’s blood supply.

i-STAT Point-of-Care
includes a broad test
menu offering that
provides test results at
the bedside, improving
patient outcomes and
saving lives.

Molecular Diagnostics includes
the Vysis tests UroVysion for
bladder cancer and PathVysion
for breast cancer.
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MediSense Blood
Glucose Monitoring,
the maker of leading
blood glucose meters
such as Precision
Xtra, helps people
with diabetes manage
their condition.
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Architect — Carlo Rostoni’s pathologist used the

Architect ci8200 to test for prostate cancer and was

able to diagnose and treat it immediately. Thanks

to the early diagnosis, Carlo, a retired clothing

entrepreneur, is enjoying his retirement in his home-

town of Milan, Italy.

Increased focus on highly innovative businesses
In 2003, we announced our intention to spin off much of
our core global hospital products business into a new public
company named Hospira. This transaction represents another
step in the reshaping and refocusing of our medical products
portfolio. Abbott will concentrate more of its resources on
its strategy of delivering high-value products to markets with
significant prospects for long-term growth.

A new operating model
Concurrent with the spin-off announcement, we added
new businesses and introduced the formation of a refined
operating model designed to improve our focus and
productivity with the goal of delivering more medical
products to market sooner.

Our medical products businesses compete in distinct
markets characterized by rapid technological advancements
that require agile responses to evolving market conditions.
To better position our businesses in this fast-paced environ-
ment, we developed an operating model where each business
operates independently with full responsibility for perform-
ance and growth.

In 2004, the Abbott Medical Products Group’s new organ-
izational structure will comprise eight distinct businesses:
Abbott Diagnostics (our immunoassay, clinical chemistry
and hematology businesses), MediSense Blood Glucose
Monitoring, Abbott Molecular Diagnostics, i-STAT Point-
of-Care, Ross Products, Abbott Vascular Devices, Spinal
Concepts and Animal Health. Each will be operated
as a fully integrated unit, responsible for identifying and
capitalizing on opportunities for growth. The hospital
products business is also a part of the Medical Products
Group until the spin-off of Hospira is complete.

Continued leadership in global diagnostics
With broad segment and geographic presence, Abbott
has maintained its leadership position in immunoassay
testing worldwide.

On Dec. 18, 2003, Abbott received a determination letter
from the FDA, indicating that its Lake County, Ill.,
diagnostic manufacturing operations, for the products
currently marketed in the United States, were in substantial
conformity with the Quality System Regulation. As a
result, Abbott is beginning the process of returning products
to market and introducing new immunoassay tests in the
United States throughout 2004.

In the first quarter of 2003, Abbott launched the newest
member of the Architect family, a modular instrument
that integrates both chemistry and immunoassay testing.
Outside the United States, where the immunoassay testing
menu is more extensive, Architect has been very well
received by laboratory technicians due to the simplicity of
its operating system and its ability to improve the overall
efficiency of the laboratory. In the United States, we
expect to launch a number of new assays on the Architect
system this year, increasing the utility and competitiveness
of the Architect menu.

We announced in July 2003 the worldwide introduction
of the AxSym 5.0, which offers enhanced technology to allow
quicker access to commonly used laboratory data. The
AxSym 5.0 also includes hardware improvements to better
ensure the quality of the testing process.

We will continue to expand the AxSym immunoassay analyz-
er’s menu, launching several new AxSym assays, including
hepatitis and prostate-specific antigen (PSA). Through a
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UroVysion — Other than his wife, three children and six

dogs, John Mahan’s true love is teaching English literature

at a college near his Ohio home. John is living with bladder

cancer. With UroVysion, a noninvasive test, his oncologist

was able to detect the recurrence of his bladder cancer early

so that John could seek treatment.

partnership with Axis-Shield plc, we have launched an
assay worldwide for B-type natriuretic peptide (BNP),
a cardiac marker.

In late 2003, Abbott submitted data to the U.S. Department of
Agriculture (USDA), regarding its test for bovine spongiform
encephalopathy (BSE), commonly known as “mad cow
disease.” The test detects the presence of the abnormal prions
believed to cause BSE and can provide results within a few
hours — much faster than the current test method used by
the USDA. Abbott has been selling the tests outside the United
States since 2001 through an exclusive marketing and distri-
bution agreement with Ireland-based Enfer Scientific Ltd.

The AbbottPrism, a high-throughput, highly automated
blood-screening system, continues to help blood centers
and blood banks outside the United States maintain the
safety of the blood supply. Upon FDA approval, we’re
planning to launch the AbbottPrism system to our U.S.
blood bank customers.

The worldwide launch of the Cell-Dyn 1800 automated
hematology analyzer in 2003 added additional breadth to
our portfolio of hematology analyzers. It’s designed to meet
the growing need for efficiency in small- to medium-sized
clinical laboratories and provides a unique combination of
features, including fast access to patient results and expand-
ed data management capabilities.

Molecular Diagnostics: Growth on the leading edge
With growth rates exceeding 25 percent, we view the billion-
dollar molecular market as one of the most attractive in the
diagnostics industry. Over the last two years, we have taken a
number of actions to ensure that we are properly positioned
in this high-growth diagnostics segment.

This includes our Vysis Inc. acquisition, completed in
December 2001, which provided patented FISH (fluorescent
in situ hybridization) technology for chromosomal and
genetic analysis. This technology is the foundation of our
UroVysion assay, which allows the noninvasive monitoring of
bladder cancer recurrence in patients — in whom a small
change at the genetic level signals recurrence of cancer. Our
PathVysion HER-2 assay assists physicians in determining
whether a breast cancer patient is expressing the HER-2/
neu gene and a candidate for Herceptin therapy.

Abbott’s alliance with Celera Diagnostics formed in 2002
gave us access to a number of products and technologies
that strengthen our product portfolio in genomics. The first
new product to be marketed through the alliance is the
ViroSeq HIV-1 genotyping system, a test that detects mutations
in the HIV-1 virus associated with drug resistance.

Accelerating MediSense performance
With MediSense, Abbott participates in the more than $5 bil-
lion worldwide glucose monitoring market. MediSense prod-
ucts help people with diabetes better manage their condition.

In late 2003, Abbott launched the MediSense Precision PCx
2.2.1 system worldwide, an enhanced version of its hand-
held, point-of-care blood glucose testing system. Abbott has
gained a nearly 25 percent share of the hospital marketplace,
driven by the simplicity and ease of use of its point-of-care
systems and the ability to provide innovative networking
solutions, which automate the transfer of results and quality
control data.

i-STAT Point-of-Care
Immediate test results at the bedside help medical staff
improve outcomes, save patients’ lives and reduce stays in
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critical care. The point-of-care diagnostics area is growing
rapidly with the demand for real-time test results.

Through a 1998 marketing and distribution agreement with
i-STAT Corp., a leading manufacturer of point-of-care diag-
nostic systems for blood analysis, Abbott recognized the
potential in this segment. In December, Abbott announced
plans to acquire i-STAT, and we completed the acquisition in
January of 2004. This allows Abbott continued access to a
broad point-of-care portfolio, with an array of products,
including the i-STAT portable clinical analyzer, which performs
commonly ordered blood tests on two or three drops of blood,
in minutes at the patient’s bedside. i-STAT expanded its menu
in 2003 with the launch of Prothrombin Time, a test to assess
clotting function, and Troponin I, a test used to aid in the
diagnosis of myocardial infarction (heart attack). Additionally,
i-STAT has a number of new products in development.

Ross Products: Growing through increased consumer presence
Ross remains a key component of Abbott’s broad-based
health care portfolio, capitalizing on its leading nutritionals
to provide strong cash flow and exceptional returns. Ross is
focused on accelerating sales growth through its strong lead-
ership positions and brand equity of its products to move
into new consumer nutrition segments where its core compe-
tencies will provide a competitive advantage.

In pediatric nutritionals, new formulations of Similac and
Isomil lead a powerful portfolio of brands to nourish growing
babies and children. Ross infant formulas with DHA and ARA,
two fatty acids found in breast milk, are important in the brain
and visual development of premature infants. Launched in
2002, supplemented formulas now represent nearly half of
infant formula market sales. Ross continued its product-flavor
innovation in PediaSure, a complete, balanced nutritional for
children, by adding an orange cream flavor in 2003.

In medical nutritionals, the new reclosable plastic bottle
for Ensure — the first of its kind in the adult nutritionals
category — offers a more convenient way to enjoy complete,
balanced nutrition for a healthy, active and energetic lifestyle.

Glucerna, Abbott’s leading brand of nutritional products
for people with diabetes, contributed to strong growth in
disease-specific nutritionals. In 2003, we strengthened our
retail presence with Glucerna Weight Loss Shakes, the first
shakes specifically designed to help people with diabetes
manage their weight and blood glucose levels.

In 2003, Abbott’s nutritionals business stretched beyond
the long-served infant and adult nutritionals markets by
entering the rapidly growing healthy living category. Abbott
acquired ZonePerfect Nutrition Co., which markets and sells
nutritious bars, shakes, dietary supplements, and meals for
people on the go. ZonePerfect markets products through
major food, drug and mass merchandisers across the United
States. ZonePerfect affords Ross a platform to take advantage
of its nutritional science, flavor technology and consumer
marketing capabilities.

Building a comprehensive vascular business
Abbott Vascular Devices comprises three distinct businesses:
coronary, endovascular and vessel closure technologies.
Our objective in vascular is to bring a continuous stream of
innovative devices to market faster and more frequently,
building on the strategy we initiated with our Perclose Inc.
acquisition in 1999.

In mid-2003, Abbott completed the acquisition of the coro-
nary and endovascular business lines of Netherlands-based
Jomed N.V. The Jomed product portfolio includes stents, stent
grafts, angioplasty balloon devices, and guiding and diagnostic
catheters. Aside from strengthening our technology and

ZonePerfect Nutritional Bars — James and Corina

Esquivel started eating ZonePerfect bars to get in shape for

vacation. A year later, they are still eating right, exercising

and enjoying ZonePerfect bars every day to stay on track.

James says, “Collectively we’ve lost close to 80 pounds,

feel better, and can finally keep up with our four kids!”
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product offering in these key areas, the purchase significantly
expands Abbott’s international sales force and infrastructure.
In addition, we established a partnership with Japanese
medical device-maker Asahi Intecc Co. Ltd. to distribute
its guidewire portfolio. In September, we also broadened
our vascular device business through the acquisition of
Integrated Vascular Systems Inc., a developer of novel vessel
closure technologies.

In the coronary device business, we continue to make
progress in the development of our drug-eluting stent
(DES). Our agreement with Medtronic Inc. to in-license its
single-operator delivery system was the final component of
Abbott’s strategy to develop a competitive entrant into the
DES market. At the same time, Medtronic in-licensed our
antiproliferative agent for restenosis, ABT-578, and our
patented phosphorylcholine (PC) coating for use on its stent
platform. In our own DES program, we made progress with
our animal studies in 2003 and plan to begin human clinical
trials in 2004. Preliminary data presented in 2003 by Abbott
and Medtronic were encouraging and confirmed our earlier
findings that ABT-578 and PC coating offer a significant
reduction in restenosis — similar to rates reported in other
well-publicized drug-coated stent trials.

In the endovascular business, we are focused on building a
strong commercial presence with a broad offering of stents,
catheters and embolic protection devices. In addition to our
current endovascular portfolio, we are aggressively develop-
ing next-generation products. We also have an agreement
with MedNova Ltd. to develop embolic filter and carotid
stent products to prevent debris dislodged during a vascular
procedure from damaging downstream organs. In 2003, we
presented encouraging results from our SECuRITY trial,

evaluating the safety and effectiveness of treating high-risk
patients with MedNova’s EmboShield cerebral protection
system and the Xact carotid stent. The data indicate that we
are one step closer to our goal of bringing patients and
physicians a new, minimally invasive alternative to surgical
removal of plaque in high-risk patients. In addition, the
EmboShield vascular protection system also shows promise
in saphenous vein grafts. We plan to file for FDA approval
for the device in 2004.

Also, in 2003, we introduced an enhanced version of the
Perclose A-T suture-mediated closure system with added
features, including human factors engineering and a new
trimmer that facilitates both knot advancement and suture
trimming. In 2004, we plan to launch the next-generation
Perclose system, the Perclose ProGlide, featuring a monofila-
ment suture. The ProGlide platform expands the Perclose
product line to give interventionalists the same suture
options as surgeons for vascular repair.

Spinal Concepts: Bringing specialized technology to the
medical products portfolio
Abbott acquired Spinal Concepts during 2003, adding an
innovation-driven spinal implant company to the medical
products portfolio. Spinal Concepts products are used in the
treatment of disorders, such as degenerative disc disease,
trauma, deformity and spinal stenosis. The spinal implant
market segment is growing rapidly, with a compounded
growth rate projected to exceed 20 percent over the next five
years. This acquisition provides Abbott with an opportunity
to selectively participate in the specialized, high-growth,
highly innovative segment of the orthopedic market, the
second-largest medical device market behind cardiovascular,
with favorable demographics and emerging technologies.

EmboShield — Genevieve Frank had surgery to remove

plaque from her carotid artery. After scar tissue formed, her

doctor suggested enrolling her in the U.S. clinical trial for

EmboShield, a protection device used with the Xact carotid

stent to decrease the possibility of stroke. EmboShield is E.U.

approved and co-developed with MedNova Ltd.

    

41



    

42

Our Commitment
to Global Citizenship

At Abbott, global citizenship reflects how our company
advances its business objectives; engages its stakehold-
ers; implements its policies; applies its social investment
and philanthropy; and exercises its influence to make a
productive contribution to society.

Access to Medicines
Cody Scoggins, patient on Depakote

Expanding access to medicines to those most in need —

the poor, uninsured and elderly — requires the contribution

and leadership of many stakeholders, including patients,

medical professionals, health care companies, insurers and

governments. For our part, Abbott is making available its

medicines through a number of programs, such as the

Abbott Patient Assistance Program in the United States,

which provides Cody Scoggins Abbott’s epilepsy drug,

Depakote, at no cost.

Global Citizenship Report
Being a socially responsible company extends to all aspects

of how Abbott conducts its business — from ethics and

compliance, product quality, diversity in the workplace,

environment, health and safety, to employee volunteerism

in the community. To learn more, please visit

www.abbott.com/citizenship and read our current

global citizenship report.

Science Education
Operation Discovery

Sustaining advancements in innovation require providing

opportunities for scientists, clinicians and students to

discover new ideas and build their skills. Abbott and the

Abbott Laboratories Fund support a variety of educational

programs, including Operation Discovery, to nurture

future innovators by stimulating early interest in science,

math and technology.

Helping Children Affected by HIV/AIDS
Step Forward … for the world’s children

There are approximately 14 million orphans and vulnerable

children affected by HIV/AIDS worldwide, and the number

is projected to reach 25 million by 2010. The Abbott

Laboratories Fund, through the Step Forward program, is

working with governments, nongovernmental organizations,

social workers, health professionals and community leaders

to improve the lives of these children in the developing world.

As part of its strategy to strengthen local communities and

keep children in school, Step Forward renovated several

schools, including the Mwence Primary School in Tanzania.
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Consolidated Statement of Earnings and Comprehensive Income

(dollars and shares in thousands except per share data)

Year Ended December 31 2003 2002 2001

Net Sales $19,680,561 $17,684,663 $16,285,246

Cost of products sold 9,473,416 8,506,254 7,748,382

Research and development 1,733,472 1,561,792 1,577,552

Acquired in-process research and development 100,240 107,700 1,330,400

Selling, general and administrative 5,050,901 3,978,776 3,734,880

Total Operating Cost and Expenses 16,358,029 14,154,522 14,391,214

Operating Earnings 3,322,532 3,530,141 1,894,032

Net interest expense 146,123 205,220 234,759

(Income) from TAP Pharmaceutical Products Inc. joint venture (580,950) (666,773) (333,767)

Net foreign exchange (gain) loss 55,298 74,626 31,351

Other (income) expense, net (32,356) 243,655 78,541

Earnings Before Taxes 3,734,417 3,673,413 1,883,148

Taxes on earnings 981,184 879,710 332,758

Net Earnings $÷2,753,233 $÷2,793,703 $÷1,550,390

Basic Earnings Per Common Share $1.76 $1.79 $1.00

Diluted Earnings Per Common Share $1.75 $1.78 $0.99

Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding

Used for Basic Earnings Per Common Share 1,562,815 1,560,956 1,550,408

Dilutive Common Stock Options 9,054 12,337 15,555

Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding

Plus Dilutive Common Stock Options 1,571,869 1,573,293 1,565,963

Outstanding Common Stock Options Having No Dilutive Effect 57,706 22,558 768

Comprehensive Income, net of tax:

Foreign currency translation adjustments $÷1,162,004 $÷÷«327,680 $÷÷÷÷(5,029)

Minimum pension liability adjustments,

net of taxes of $57,219 in 2003 and $115,992 in 2002 (99,155) (203,182) —

Unrealized (losses) gains on marketable equity securities 106,673 (20,307) 21,107

Net (losses) gains on derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges 3,550 (28,774) 11,408

Reclassification adjustments for realized (gains) (20,538) (489) (18,984)

Other comprehensive income 1,152,534 74,928 8,502

Net Earnings 2,753,233 2,793,703 1,550,390

Comprehensive Income $÷3,905,767 $÷2,868,631 $÷1,558,892

Supplemental Comprehensive Income Information, net of tax:

Cumulative foreign currency translation (gain) loss adjustments $÷÷(853,762) $÷÷«308,242 $÷÷«635,922

Cumulative minimum pension liability adjustments 302,337 203,182 —

Cumulative unrealized (gains) on marketable equity securities (95,143) (9,008) (29,804)

Cumulative losses (gains) on derivative instruments

designated as cash flow hedges 13,816 17,366 (11,408)

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(dollars in thousands)

47

Year Ended December 31 2003 2002 2001

Cash Flow From (Used in) Operating Activities:

Net earnings $«2,753,233 $«2,793,703 $«1,550,390

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings

to net cash from operating activities —

Depreciation 910,785 834,923 774,272

Amortization of intangibles 363,206 342,422 393,746

Acquired in-process research and development 100,240 107,700 1,330,400

Investing and financing (gains) losses, net 115,803 134,472 159,936

Trade receivables (104,922) (111,533) (279,167)

Inventories 7,007 (190,975) (184,953)

Prepaid expenses and other assets (296,526) 347,101 (962,005)

Trade accounts payable and other liabilities (165,969) 138,829 732,482

Income taxes payable 63,591 (213,698) 51,747

Net Cash From Operating Activities 3,746,448 4,182,944 3,566,848

Cash Flow From (Used in) Investing Activities:

Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired (497,914) (585,999) (7,424,356)

Acquisitions of property and equipment (1,246,741) (1,296,397) (1,163,707)

Purchases of investment securities (289,432) (156,078) (179,618)

Proceeds from sales of investment securities 337,017 140,284 309,161

Other 66,465 16,570 73,646

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (1,630,605) (1,881,620) (8,384,874)

Cash Flow From (Used in) Financing Activities:

Proceeds from (repayments of) commercial paper, net (814,000) (1,306,000) 2,741,000

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, net 688,643 — 3,000,000

Other borrowing transactions, net (342,570) 286,872 1,540

Purchases of common shares (97,617) — (17,364)

Proceeds from stock options exercised 75,035 137,004 169,422

Dividends paid (1,515,703) (1,427,850) (1,270,782)

Net Cash From (Used in) Financing Activities (2,006,212) (2,309,974) 4,623,816

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 181,043 55,722 (62,630)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 290,674 47,072 (256,840)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 704,450 657,378 914,218

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $÷÷995,124 $÷÷704,450 $÷÷657,378

Supplemental Cash Flow Information:

Income taxes paid $÷÷897,354 $«1,032,287 $÷÷984,079

Interest paid 206,885 265,698 232,431

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



    

Consolidated Balance Sheet

(dollars in thousands)

December 31 2003 2002 2001

Assets

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $÷÷«995,124 $÷÷«704,450 $÷÷«657,378

Investment securities 291,297 261,677 56,162

Trade receivables, less allowances of —

2003: $259,514; 2002: $198,116; 2001: $195,585 3,313,377 2,927,370 2,812,727

Inventories —

Finished products 1,467,441 1,274,760 1,154,329

Work in process 545,977 563,659 487,310

Materials 725,021 602,883 570,396

Total inventories 2,738,439 2,441,302 2,212,035

Deferred income taxes 1,165,259 1,022,861 1,112,247

Other prepaid expenses and receivables 1,786,919 1,764,112 1,568,640

Total Current Assets 10,290,415 9,121,772 8,419,189

Investment Securities 406,357 250,779 647,214

Property and Equipment, at Cost:

Land 356,757 335,566 332,268

Buildings 2,662,023 2,387,583 2,248,959

Equipment 9,479,044 8,790,209 8,097,044

Construction in progress 792,923 634,315 547,134

13,290,747 12,147,673 11,225,405

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization 7,008,941 6,319,551 5,673,858

Net Property and Equipment 6,281,806 5,828,122 5,551,547

Intangible Assets, net of amortization 4,089,882 3,919,248 4,116,674

Goodwill 4,449,408 3,732,533 3,177,646

Deferred Income Taxes,

Investments in Joint Ventures and Other Assets 1,197,474 1,406,648 1,384,153

$26,715,342 $24,259,102 $23,296,423

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

(dollars in thousands)

December 31 2003 2002 2001

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Investment

Current Liabilities:

Short-term borrowings $÷÷«828,092 $÷1,927,543 $÷2,950,956

Trade accounts payable 1,754,367 1,661,650 1,525,215

Salaries, wages and commissions 625,525 579,689 557,672

Other accrued liabilities 2,180,098 2,202,477 2,285,644

Dividends payable 383,352 367,345 326,552

Income taxes payable 158,836 42,387 278,399

Current portion of long-term debt 1,709,265 221,111 2,379

Total Current Liabilities 7,639,535 7,002,202 7,926,817

Long-term Debt 3,452,329 4,273,973 4,335,493

Post-employment Obligations and Other Long-term Liabilities 2,551,220 2,318,374 1,974,681

Commitments and Contingencies

Shareholders’ Investment:

Preferred shares, one dollar par value

Authorized — 1,000,000 shares, none issued — — —

Common shares, without par value

Authorized — 2,400,000,000 shares

Issued at stated capital amount —

Shares: 2003: 1,580,247,227;

2002: 1,578,944,551; 2001: 1,571,816,976 3,034,054 2,891,266 2,643,443

Common shares held in treasury, at cost —

Shares: 2003: 15,729,296;

2002: 15,876,449; 2001: 17,286,684 (229,696) (231,845) (252,438)

Unearned compensation — restricted stock awards (56,336) (76,472) (18,258)

Earnings employed in the business 9,691,484 8,601,386 7,281,395

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 632,752 (519,782) (594,710)

Total Shareholders’ Investment 13,072,258 10,664,553 9,059,432

$26,715,342 $24,259,102 $23,296,423
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Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Investment

(dollars in thousands except per share data)

Year Ended December 31 2003 2002 2001

Common Shares:

Beginning of Year

Shares: 2003: 1,578,944,551; 2002: 1,571,816,976; 2001: 1,563,436,372 $«2,891,266 $«2,643,443 $«2,218,234

Issued under incentive stock programs

Shares: 2003: 4,186,710; 2002: 7,331,098; 2001: 12,571,697 118,119 202,741 363,492

Tax benefit from option shares and vesting of

restricted stock awards (no share effect) 29,980 46,755 70,223

Retired — Shares: 2003: 2,884,034; 2002: 203,523; 2001: 4,191,093 (5,311) (1,673) (8,506)

End of Year

Shares: 2003: 1,580,247,227; 2002: 1,578,944,551; 2001: 1,571,816,976 $«3,034,054 $«2,891,266 $«2,643,443

Common Shares Held in Treasury:

Beginning of Year

Shares: 2003: 15,876,449; 2002: 17,286,684; 2001: 17,502,239 $÷«(231,845) $÷«(252,438) $÷«(255,586)

Issued under incentive stock programs

Shares: 2003: 147,153; 2002: 1,410,235; 2001: 215,555 2,149 20,593 3,148

End of Year

Shares: 2003: 15,729,296; 2002: 15,876,449; 2001: 17,286,684 $÷«(229,696) $÷«(231,845) $÷«(252,438)

Unearned Compensation — Restricted Stock Awards:

Beginning of Year $÷÷«(76,472) $÷÷«(18,258) $÷÷«(18,116)

Issued at market value — 

Shares: 2003: 130,000; 2002: 1,396,000; 2001: 198,000 (5,429) (78,835) (10,222)

Lapses — Shares: 2002: 25,105; 2001: 52,000 — 1,362 2,126

Amortization 25,565 19,259 7,954

End of Year $÷÷«(56,336) $÷÷«(76,472) $÷÷«(18,258)

Earnings Employed in the Business:

Beginning of Year $«8,601,386 $«7,281,395 $«7,229,586

Net earnings 2,753,233 2,793,703 1,550,390

Cash dividends declared on common shares

(per share — 2003: $.98; 2002: $.94; 2001: $.84) (1,531,710) (1,468,643) (1,303,534)

Cost of common shares retired in excess of stated capital amount (135,390) (64,066) (202,926)

Cost of treasury shares issued below market value 3,965 58,997 7,879

End of Year $«9,691,484 $«8,601,386 $«7,281,395

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):

Beginning of Year $÷«(519,782) $÷«(594,710) $÷«(603,212)

Other comprehensive income 1,152,534 74,928 8,502

End of Year $÷÷632,752 $÷«(519,782) $÷«(594,710)

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business — Abbott’s principal business is the discovery,
development, manufacture and sale of a broad line of health
care products.

Concentration of Risk and Guarantees — Due to the nature of its
operations, Abbott is not subject to significant concentration risks
relating to customers, products or geographic locations, except
that three wholesalers accounted for 20 percent, 22 percent and
19 percent of trade receivables as of December 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively.

Abbott has no material exposures to off-balance sheet arrange-
ments; no special purpose entities; nor activities that include
non-exchange-traded contracts accounted for at fair value. Abbott
has periodically entered into agreements in the ordinary course of
business, such as assignment of product rights, with other compa-
nies which has resulted in Abbott becoming secondarily liable for
obligations that Abbott was previously primarily liable. Since
Abbott no longer maintains a business relationship with the other
parties, Abbott is unable to develop an estimate of the maximum
potential amount of future payments under these obligations.
Based upon past experience, the likelihood of payments under
these agreements is remote. In addition, Abbott periodically
acquires small companies in which Abbott agrees to pay contingent
consideration based on attaining certain thresholds. Product war-
ranties are not significant.

Basis of Consolidation — The consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of the parent company and subsidiaries, after
elimination of intercompany transactions. The accounts of foreign
subsidiaries are consolidated as of November 30, due to the time
needed to consolidate these subsidiaries. No events occurred related
to these foreign subsidiaries in December 2003, 2002 and 2001 that
materially affected the financial position or results of operations.

Use of Estimates — The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and neces-
sarily include amounts based on estimates and assumptions by
management. Actual results could differ from those amounts.
Significant estimates include amounts for litigation, income taxes,
sales rebates, valuation of intangibles, inventory and accounts receiv-
able exposures, and pension and other post-employment benefits.

Litigation — Abbott accounts for litigation losses in accordance
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 5,
“Accounting for Contingencies.” Under SFAS No. 5, loss contin-
gency provisions are recorded for probable losses at management’s
best estimate of a loss, or when a best estimate cannot be made,
a minimum loss contingency amount is recorded.

Sales Rebates — Provisions for rebates to customers are provided
for in the period the related sales are recorded. Historical data is
readily available and reliable, and is used for estimating the amount
of the reduction in gross sales.

Income Taxes — Deferred income taxes are provided for the tax
effect of temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial statements at
the enacted statutory rate to be in effect when the taxes are paid.
U.S. income taxes are provided on those earnings of foreign sub-
sidiaries and subsidiaries operating in Puerto Rico under tax
incentive grants, which are intended to be remitted to the parent
company. Deferred income taxes are not provided on undistributed
earnings reinvested indefinitely in foreign subsidiaries as working
capital and plant and equipment. Loss contingency provisions are
recorded for the estimated amount of audit settlements.

Pension and Post-Employment Benefits — Abbott accrues for the
actuarially determined cost of pension and post-employment bene-
fits over the service attribution periods of the employees. With the
assistance of outside actuaries, Abbott must develop long-term
assumptions, the most significant of which are the health care costs
trend rate, discount rate and the expected return on plan assets.
Differences between the expected long-term return on plan assets
and the actual annual return are amortized over a five-year period.

Valuation of Intangible Assets — Purchased intangible assets are
recorded at fair value. The fair value of significant purchased intan-
gible assets is based on independent appraisals. Abbott uses a
discounted cash flow model to value intangible assets. The dis-
counted cash flow model requires assumptions about the timing
and amount of future net cash inflows, risk, the cost of capital and
terminal values. Intangible assets and goodwill are reviewed for
impairment at least on a quarterly and annual basis, respectively.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investment Securities — Cash equiva-
lents consist of time deposits and certificates of deposit with
original maturities of three months or less. Investments in mar-
ketable equity securities are classified as available-for-sale and are
recorded at fair value with any unrealized holding gains or losses,
net of tax, included in Accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss). Investments in equity securities that are not traded on public
stock exchanges are recorded at cost. Abbott monitors equity
investments for other than temporary declines in fair value and
charges impairment losses to income when an other than tempo-
rary decline in estimated value occurs. Investments in debt
securities are classified as held-to-maturity, as management has
both the intent and ability to hold these securities to maturity, and
are reported at cost, net of any unamortized premium or discount.
Income relating to these securities is reported as a component of
interest income.

Inventories — Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
(first-in, first-out basis) or market. Cost includes material and
conversion costs.
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Property and Equipment — Depreciation and amortization are
provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets. The following table shows estimated useful lives of
property and equipment:

Classification Estimated Useful Lives

Buildings 10 to 50 years (average 27 years)

Equipment 3 to 20 years (average 11 years)

Product Liability — Provisions are made for the portions of
probable losses that are not covered by product liability insurance.

Translation Adjustments — For foreign operations in highly
inflationary economies, translation gains and losses are included
in Net foreign exchange (gain) loss. For remaining foreign opera-
tions, translation adjustments are included as a component of
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

Revenue Recognition — Revenue from product sales is recognized
upon passage of title and risk of loss to customers (when product is
delivered to common carrier for shipment to domestic customers).
Provisions for discounts, rebates and sales incentives to customers,
and returns and other adjustments are provided for in the period
the related sales are recorded. Sales of product rights for marketable
products are recorded as revenue upon disposition of the rights.
Sales incentives to customers are not material. Revenue from
license of product rights, or for performance of research or selling
activities, is recorded over the periods earned.

Research and Development Costs — Internal research and develop-
ment costs are expensed as incurred. Clinical trial costs incurred
by third parties are expensed as the contracted work is performed.
Where contingent milestone payments are due to third parties under
research and development arrangements, the milestone payment
obligations are expensed when the milestone results are achieved.

Stock-Based Compensation — Abbott measures compensation
cost using the intrinsic value-based method of accounting for
stock options and replacement stock options granted to employees.
Restricted stock awards are amortized over their vesting period
with a charge to compensation expense.

Note 2 — Supplemental Financial Information
(dollars in thousands)

Other Prepaid Expenses and Receivables 2003 2002 2001

TAP Pharmaceutical Products Inc.

trade receivables under

a service agreement (a) $÷«676,034 $÷«685,848 $÷«540,914

All other 1,110,885 1,078,264 1,027,726

Total $1,786,919 $1,764,112 $1,568,640

(a) The payable to TAP related to this service agreement is recorded in accounts

payable and was $691,095, $666,422, and $554,156 at December 31, 2003, 2002

and 2001, respectively.

Other Accrued Liabilities 2003 2002 2001

Accrued rebates payable to

government agencies $÷«381,898 $÷«288,076 $÷«279,930

Accrued other rebates (b) 212,459 205,489 232,147

All other 1,585,741 1,708,912 1,773,567

Total $2,180,098 $2,202,477 $2,285,644

(b) Accrued wholesaler chargeback rebates of $81,292, $81,017 and $72,586 at

December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, are netted in trade receivables.

Accrued wholesaler chargeback rebates are netted in trade receivables because

Abbott’s customers are invoiced at a higher catalog price but only remit to Abbott

their contract price for the products.

Post-employment Obligations and

Other Long-term Liabilities 2003 2002 2001

Accrued post-employment

medical and dental costs $÷«797,127 $÷«746,352 $÷«692,003

Minimum pension

liability adjustments 498,008 342,874 —

All other 1,256,085 1,229,148 1,282,678

Total $2,551,220 $2,318,374 $1,974,681

Net Interest Expense

Interest expense $÷«188,128 $÷«238,945 $÷«307,336

Interest income (42,005) (33,725) (72,577)

Total $÷«146,123 $÷«205,220 $÷«234,759

Other (Income) Expense, net

Other than temporary declines in

market value of equity securities $÷÷÷÷÷÷— $÷«210,811 $÷÷«98,500

All other (32,356) 32,844 (19,959)

Total $÷÷(32,356) $÷«243,655 $÷÷«78,541

Note 3 — Investment Securities
(dollars in thousands)

The following is a summary of investment securities at December 31:

Current Investment Securities 2003 2002 2001

Time deposits and

certificates of deposit $291,297 $120,000 $÷20,000

Other, primarily debt obligations

issued or guaranteed by various

governments or government agencies — 141,677 36,162

Total $291,297 $261,677 $÷56,162

Long-term Investment Securities 2003 2002 2001

Equity securities $381,053 $222,667 $343,115

Time deposits and

certificates of deposit 9,729 — 100,000

Corporate debt obligations — — 70,000

Debt obligations issued or

guaranteed by various governments

or government agencies 15,575 28,112 134,099

Total $406,357 $250,779 $647,214
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Of the investment securities listed above, $15,575, $247,998, and
$323,974 were held at December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, respec-
tively, by subsidiaries operating in Puerto Rico under tax incentive
grants expiring in 2015 and 2020.

Abbott reviews the carrying value of investments in equity securi-
ties each quarter to determine whether an other than temporary
decline in market value exists. Abbott considers factors affecting the
investee, factors affecting the industry the investee operates in, and
general equity market trends. Abbott considers the length of time
an investment’s market value has been below carrying value and the
near-term prospects for recovery to carrying value. When Abbott
determines that an other than temporary decline has occurred,
the investment is written down with a charge to Other (income)
expense, net.

Gross unrealized holding gains (losses) on current and long-term
held-to-maturity investment securities totaled $1,400 and $(2,200),
respectively, at December 31, 2003; $1,500 and $(8,500), respec-
tively, at December 31, 2002; and $2,000 and $(17,200), respectively,
at December 31, 2001. Gross unrealized holding gains (losses) on
available-for-sale equity securities totaled $162,700 and $(4,000),
respectively, at December 31, 2003; $24,400 and $(9,200), respec-
tively, at December 31, 2002; and $57,000 and $(1,800), respectively,
at December 31, 2001. For current and long-term held-to-maturity
securities and available-for-sale equity securities, the adjusted cost
basis of the investments have been above the market value for less
than one year as of December 31, 2003.

Note 4 — Financial Instruments and Derivatives

Certain Abbott foreign subsidiaries enter into foreign currency
forward exchange contracts to manage exposures to changes in
foreign exchange rates for anticipated intercompany purchases
by those subsidiaries whose functional currencies are not the
U.S. dollar. These contracts, totaling $602 million, $857 million
and $571 million at December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, are desig-
nated as cash flow hedges of the variability of the cash flows due
to changes in foreign exchange rates. Abbott records the contracts
at fair value, resulting in credits of $3.6 million and $11.4 million
to Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in 2003 and
2001, respectively, and a $28.8 million charge to Accumulated other

comprehensive income (loss) in 2002. No hedge ineffectiveness
was recorded in income in 2003, 2002 or 2001. Accumulated gains
and losses as of December 31, 2003 will be included in Cost of
products sold at the time the products are sold, generally through
the end of 2004.

Abbott is a party to interest rate hedge contracts totaling
$3.25 billion to manage its exposure to changes in the fair value
of $3.25 billion of fixed-rate debt due in July 2004 and 2006. These
contracts are designated as fair value hedges of the variability of the
fair value of fixed-rate debt due to changes in the long-term bench-
mark interest rates. The effect of the hedge is to change a fixed-rate
interest obligation to a variable rate for that portion of the debt.
Abbott records the contracts at fair value and adjusts the carrying
amount of the fixed-rate debt by an offsetting amount. No hedge
ineffectiveness was recorded in income in 2003, 2002 and 2001.

Abbott enters into foreign currency forward exchange contracts
to manage currency exposures for foreign currency denominated
third-party trade payables and receivables, and for intercompany
loans and trade accounts payable where the receivable or payable is
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of
the entity. For intercompany loans, the contracts require Abbott to
sell foreign currencies, primarily European currencies and Japanese
yen, in exchange for primarily U.S. dollars and other European cur-
rencies. For intercompany and trade payables and receivables, the
currency exposures are primarily the U.S. dollar, European curren-
cies and Japanese yen. These contracts are recorded at fair value,
with the resulting gains or losses reflected in income as Net foreign
exchange (gain) loss. At December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, Abbott
held $3.0 billion, $1.9 billion, and $3.1 billion, respectively, of such
foreign currency exchange contracts.

The carrying values and fair values of certain financial instruments
as of December 31 are shown in the table below. The carrying val-
ues of all other financial instruments approximate their estimated
fair values. Fair value is the quoted market price of the instrument
held or the quoted market price of a similar instrument. The
counter parties to financial instruments consist of select major
international financial institutions. Abbott does not expect any
losses from nonperformance by these counter parties.
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(dollars in millions) 2003 2002 2001

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Value Value Value Value Value Value

Investment Securities:

Current $÷÷291.3 $÷÷291.3 $÷÷261.7 $÷÷259.4 $÷÷÷56.2 $÷÷÷56.2

Long-term:

Held-to-Maturity Debt Securities 25.3 24.5 28.1 23.4 304.1 288.9

Available-for-Sale Equity Securities 381.1 381.1 222.7 222.7 343.1 343.1

Total Long-term Debt (5,161.6) (5,407.2) (4,495.1) (4,640.4) (4,337.9) (4,453.2)

Foreign Currency Forward Exchange Contracts:

(Payable) position (33.3) (33.3) (34.3) (34.3) (38.7) (38.7)

Receivable position 3.0 3.0 16.5 16.5 16.0 16.0

Interest Rate Hedge Contracts 128.7 128.7 160.2 160.2 21.8 21.8
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Note 5 — Post-Employment Benefits
(dollars in thousands)

Retirement plans consist of defined benefit, defined contribution,
and medical and dental plans. Information for Abbott’s major
defined benefit plans and post-employment medical and dental
benefit plans is as follows:

Defined Benefit Plans Medical and Dental Plans

2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001

Projected benefit obligations, January 1 $«3,748,425 $«3,240,523 $2,572,226 $«1,286,831 $÷÷963,411 $«741,372

Service cost — benefits earned during the year 192,529 172,191 144,982 43,737 40,541 33,133

Interest cost on projected benefit obligations 247,117 225,509 199,067 69,365 74,093 59,954

Losses (gain), primarily changes in discount and medical

trend rates, plan design changes, and differences between

actual and estimated health care costs 497,468 220,789 127,509 (100,158) 269,841 165,251

Benefits paid (169,560) (144,010) (132,137) (57,930) (61,055) (43,599)

Acquisition of the pharmaceutical business of BASF — — 331,003 — — 7,300

Other, primarily foreign currency translation 130,342 33,423 (2,127) — — —

Projected benefit obligations, December 31 $«4,646,321 $«3,748,425 $3,240,523 $«1,241,845 $«1,286,831 $«963,411

Plans’ assets at fair value, January 1, principally listed securities $«2,373,415 $«2,643,704 $2,828,801 $÷÷÷÷÷÷«— $÷÷÷÷÷«293 $÷«35,335

Actual return on plans’ assets 441,307 (310,375) (198,581) — — 4,646

Company contributions 309,473 162,872 44,770 57,930 60,762 3,911

Benefits paid (169,560) (144,010) (132,137) (57,930) (61,055) (43,599)

Acquisition of the pharmaceutical business of BASF — — 123,755 — — —

Other, primarily foreign currency translation 63,097 21,224 (22,904) — — —

Plans’ assets at fair value, December 31 $«3,017,732 $«2,373,415 $2,643,704 $÷÷÷÷÷÷«— $÷÷÷÷÷÷«— $÷÷÷÷293

Projected benefit obligations greater than

plans’ assets, December 31 $(1,628,589) $(1,375,010) $÷(596,819) $(1,241,845) $(1,286,831) $(963,118)

Unrecognized actuarial losses, net 1,435,733 1,113,438 289,405 718,215 568,340 287,176

Unrecognized prior service cost 13,575 15,047 21,518 (334,662) (77,861) (58,079)

Unrecognized transition obligation 280 (295) (1,062) — — —

Net accrued benefit cost $÷«(179,001) $÷«(246,820) $÷(286,958) $÷«(858,292) $÷«(796,352) $(734,021)

Accrued benefit cost $÷«(883,358) $÷«(741,449) $÷(418,133) $÷«(858,292) $÷«(796,352) $(734,021)

Prepaid benefit cost 206,349 151,755 131,175 — — —

Intangible assets 22,460 23,700 — — — —

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 475,548 319,174 — — — —

Net accrued benefit cost $÷«(179,001) $÷«(246,820) $÷(286,958) $÷«(858,292) $÷«(796,352) $(734,021)

Service cost — benefits earned during the year $÷÷192,529 $÷÷172,191 $÷«144,982 $÷÷÷43,737 $÷÷÷40,541 $÷«33,133

Interest cost on projected benefit obligations 247,117 225,509 199,067 69,365 74,093 59,954

Expected return on plans’ assets (288,454) (282,721) (261,753) — — (1,940)

Net amortization 6,452 4,340 (213) 6,768 10,491 2,589

Net cost $÷÷157,644 $÷÷119,319 $÷÷«82,083 $÷÷119,870 $÷÷125,125 $÷«93,736

The accumulated benefit obligations for all defined benefit plans
was approximately $3,762,000, $3,037,000 and $2,565,000 at
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. In 2003 and 2002,
Abbott recorded minimum pension liability adjustments of
$155,134 and $342,874, respectively, because the accumulated
benefit obligations for certain domestic and international defined

benefit plans exceeded the market value of the plans’ assets. This
resulted in charges to Accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) of $99,155 in 2003 and $203,182 in 2002, net of taxes. For
plans where the accumulated benefit obligations exceeded plan
assets at December 31, 2003 and 2002, the aggregate accumulated
benefit obligations were $3,033,000 and $2,407,000, respectively;



    

the projected benefit obligations were $3,824,000 and $3,053,000,
respectively; and the aggregate plan assets were $2,567,000 and
$2,018,000, respectively. The weighted average discount rate used
at December 31, 2003 for determining the accumulated benefit
obligations for defined benefit plans whose accumulated benefit
obligations were in excess of plan assets was 5.9 percent. A one-per-
centage point reduction in the discount rate at December 31, 2003
would result in an increase in the minimum pension liability
adjustments and an increase in the charge to Accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) of approximately $780,000 and
$500,000, respectively.

The weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit oblig-
ations for defined benefit plans and medical and dental plans as of
December 31, the measurement date of the plans, are as follows:

2003 2002 2001

Discount rate 5.8% 6.5% 6.9%

Expected aggregate average

long-term change in compensation 4.2% 4.2% 4.7%

The weighted average assumptions used to determine the net cost
for defined benefit plans and medical and dental plans for 2003,
2002 and 2001 are as follows:

2003 2002 2001

Discount rate 6.5% 6.9% 7.3%

Expected return on plan assets 8.6% 9.0% 9.3%

Expected aggregate average

long-term change in compensation 4.1% 4.6% 4.9%

The assumed health care cost trend rates for medical and dental
plans at December 31 were as follows:

2003 2002 2001

Health care cost trend rate

assumed for the next year 8% 9% 5%

Rate that the cost trend rate

gradually declines to 5% 5% 5%

Year that rate reaches the

assumed ultimate rate 2007 2007 2001

A one-percentage point increase/(decrease) in the assumed health
care cost trend rate would increase/(decrease) the accumulated
post-employment benefit obligations as of December 31, 2003, by
$189,955/$(142,466), and the total of the service and interest cost
components of net post-employment health care cost for the year
then ended by approximately $22,837/$(18,041).

On December 8, 2003, the President of the United States signed the
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act
of 2003. Among the provisions of the Act is a provision granting a
subsidy to sponsors of retirement medical plans with prescription
drug coverage when the benefit is at least actuarially equivalent to
the Medicare Part D benefit. The Financial Accounting Standards
Board has not issued final rules specifying how sponsors should
account for this subsidy. Abbott has not estimated the expected
favorable impact of the legislation on its retiree medical obligations
or costs, and therefore has not reflected any effect of the legislation
in the financial statements. The final rules, when issued by the
Financial Accounting Standards Board, could require companies,
including Abbott, to retroactively change amounts included in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The weighted average asset allocation for Abbott’s U.S. defined ben-
efit plans by asset category are as follows:

Asset Category 2003 2002 2001

Equity securities 68% 60% 63%

Fixed income securities 32 40 37

Total 100% 100% 100%

The investment mix between equity securities and fixed income
securities is based upon achieving a desired return, balancing
higher return, more volatile equity securities, and lower return, less
volatile fixed income securities. Abbott’s domestic defined benefit
plans are invested in diversified portfolios of public-market equity
and fixed income securities. Investment allocations are made across
a range of markets, industry sectors, capitalization sizes, and, in
the case of fixed income securities, maturities and credit quality.
The plans hold no securities of Abbott.

The plans’ expected return on assets, as shown above, is based on
management’s expectations of long-term average rates of return to
be achieved by the underlying investment portfolios. In establishing
this assumption, management considers historical and expected
returns for the asset classes in which the plans are invested, as well
as current economic and capital market conditions.

Abbott funds its domestic pension plans according to IRS funding
limitations. In 2003 and 2002, $200,000 and $106,000, respectively,
was funded to the main domestic pension plan. Abbott expects to
contribute between $250 million and $300 million to its main
domestic defined benefit plan in 2004.

The Abbott Stock Retirement Plan is the principal defined contri-
bution plan. Abbott’s contributions to this plan were $115,000 in
2003, $109,000 in 2002, and $97,000 in 2001.

Abbott provides certain other post-employment benefits, primarily
salary continuation plans, to qualifying domestic employees, and
accrues for the related cost over the service lives of the employees.
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Note 6 — Taxes on Earnings
(dollars in thousands)

Deferred income taxes reflect the tax consequences on future
years of temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their financial reporting amounts. U.S. income taxes
are provided on those earnings of foreign subsidiaries and sub-
sidiaries operating in Puerto Rico under tax incentive grants, which
are intended to be remitted to the parent company. Undistributed
earnings reinvested indefinitely in foreign subsidiaries as working
capital and plant and equipment aggregated $5,194,000 at
December 31, 2003. It is not practicable to determine the amount
of deferred income taxes not provided on these earnings. Abbott’s
U.S. income tax returns for 1992 and prior years have been audited
by the Internal Revenue Service and are closed. In the U.S., Abbott’s
income tax returns for years after 1992 are open.

Earnings before taxes, and the related provisions for taxes on
earnings, were as follows:

Earnings Before Taxes 2003 2002 2001

Domestic $1,882,831 $2,502,823 $÷«442,150

Foreign 1,851,586 1,170,590 1,440,998

Total $3,734,417 $3,673,413 $1,883,148

Taxes on Earnings 2003 2002 2001

Current:

U.S. Federal and Possessions $÷«578,407 $÷«442,891 $÷«633,684

State 29,662 19,324 74,087

Foreign 409,773 324,250 388,950

Total current 1,017,842 786,465 1,096,721

Deferred:

Domestic 26,911 111,429 (741,213)

Foreign (63,221) (16,260) (21,563)

Enacted tax rate changes (348) (1,924) (1,187)

Total deferred (36,658) 93,245 (763,963)

Total $÷«981,184 $÷«879,710 $÷«332,758

Differences between the effective income tax rate and the
U.S. statutory tax rate were as follows:

2003 2002 2001

Statutory tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

Benefit of tax exemptions in

Puerto Rico, Costa Rica, the Netherlands,

the Dominican Republic, and Ireland (9.1) (7.3) (14.6)

Effect of nondeductible portion of the

Ross enteral nutritional settlement 3.7 — —

State taxes, net of federal benefit 0.5 0.4 0.8

Domestic dividend exclusion (4.4) (5.1) (5.0)

All other, net 0.6 1.0 1.5

Effective tax rate 26.3% 24.0% 17.7%

As of December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, total deferred tax assets
were $2,505,502, $2,375,526 and $2,412,064, respectively, and total
deferred tax liabilities were $1,075,209, $904,822, and $913,614,
respectively. Valuation allowances for deferred tax assets were not
significant. The temporary differences that give rise to deferred tax
assets and liabilities were as follows:

2003 2002 2001

Compensation and

employee benefits $÷«539,668 $÷«544,148 $÷«434,549

Trade receivable reserves 252,559 209,899 219,387

Inventory reserves 163,492 127,173 140,762

Deferred intercompany profit 380,854 240,463 254,276

State income taxes 68,489 91,140 100,265

Depreciation (203,019) (183,410) (168,499)

Other, primarily acquired

in-process research and development

and other accruals and reserves

not currently deductible, and the

excess of book basis over tax basis

of intangible assets 226,200 435,397 504,649

Total $1,428,243 $1,464,810 $1,485,389

Note 7 — Segment and Geographic Area Information
(dollars in millions)

Revenue Segments — Abbott’s principal business is the discovery,
development, manufacture and sale of a broad line of health care
products. Abbott’s products are generally sold directly to retailers,
wholesalers, hospitals, health care facilities, laboratories, physicians’
offices and government agencies throughout the world. Abbott’s
reportable segments are as follows:

Pharmaceutical Products — U.S. sales of a broad line
of pharmaceuticals.

Diagnostic Products — Worldwide sales of diagnostic systems and
tests for blood banks, hospitals, consumers, commercial laborato-
ries and alternate-care testing sites.

Hospital Products — U.S. sales of intravenous and irrigation fluids
and related administration equipment, drugs and drug-delivery
systems, anesthetics, critical care products, and other medical
specialty products for hospitals and alternate-care sites.

Ross Products — U.S. sales of a broad line of adult and
pediatric nutritional products, pediatric pharmaceuticals and
consumer products.

International — Non-U.S. sales of Abbott’s pharmaceutical,
hospital and nutritional products. Products sold by International
are manufactured by domestic segments and by international
manufacturing locations.
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Abbott’s underlying accounting records are maintained on a legal
entity basis for government and public reporting requirements.
Segment disclosures are on a performance basis consistent with
internal management reporting. Intersegment transfers of inven-
tory are recorded at standard cost and are not a measure of
segment operating earnings. The cost of some corporate functions
and the cost of certain employee benefits are sold to segments at

predetermined rates that approximate cost. Remaining costs, if
any, are not allocated to segments. Intangible assets and related
amortization from business acquisitions are not allocated to seg-
ments. The following segment information has been prepared in
accordance with the internal accounting policies of Abbott, as
described above, and are not presented in accordance with gener-
ally accepted accounting principles applied to the consolidated
financial statements.

Net Sales to Operating Depreciation Additions to

External Customers Earnings and Amortization Long-Term Assets Total Assets

2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001

Pharmaceutical (a) $÷5,220 $÷4,268 $÷3,759 $1,664 $1,441 $1,409 $÷69 $÷55 $÷34 $÷64 $÷÷«60 $÷23 $÷2,406 $÷2,279 $÷2,014

Diagnostic (b) 3,040 2,897 2,929 249 220 357 202 149 182 301 295 249 3,127 2,753 2,736

Hospital 3,078 2,979 2,778 705 786 738 127 111 107 223 315 164 2,153 2,202 1,934

Ross 2,136 2,088 2,088 720 688 752 65 64 67 93 93 70 959 871 889

International (a)(b) 5,685 5,036 4,418 1,366 1,298 949 217 187 111 297 375 255 4,559 3,849 3,632

Total Reportable

Segments 19,159 17,268 15,972 $4,704 $4,433 $4,205 $680 $566 $501 $978 $1,138 $761 $13,204 $11,954 $11,205

Other 522 417 313

Net Sales $19,681 $17,685 $16,285

(a) Net sales and operating earnings were favorably impacted in 2002 and 2001 by the acquisition of the pharmaceutical business of BASF in 2001.

(b) Net sales and operating earnings in 2003 were favorably affected by the relatively weaker U.S. dollar and were unfavorably affected in 2002 and 2001

by the relatively stronger U.S. dollar.

2003 2002 2001

Total Reportable Segment

Operating Earnings $4,704 $4,433 $4,205

Corporate functions 289 215 261

Benefit plans costs 77 43 101

Non-reportable segments 39 6 9

Net interest expense 146 205 235

Acquired in-process

research and development 100 108 1,330

(Income) from TAP Pharmaceutical

Products Inc. joint venture (581) (667) (334)

Net foreign exchange (gain) loss 55 75 31

Other expenses, net (c) 845 775 689

Consolidated Earnings Before Taxes $3,734 $3,673 $1,883

(c) Other expenses, net for 2003 includes charges of $622 for the settlement of the

Ross enteral nutritional investigation and $88 for impairments of assets. 2002

includes charges of $174 for restructuring plans, $116 for the FDA consent decree,

and $211 for other than temporary declines in the market value of equity securities.

2003 2002 2001

Total Reportable Segment Assets $13,204 $11,954 $11,205

Cash and investments 1,693 1,217 1,361

Investment in TAP Pharmaceutical

Products Inc. joint venture 340 370 392

Current deferred income taxes 1,165 1,023 1,112

Non-reportable segments 582 503 645

All other, net 9,731 9,192 8,581

Total Assets $26,715 $24,259 $23,296

Net Sales to

External Customers (d) Long-Term Assets

2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001

United States $11,978 $10,998 $10,249 $÷7,071 $÷8,228 $÷8,308

Japan 913 784 748 1,004 308 128

Germany 796 721 644 5,332 4,257 4,185

Canada 597 512 468 66 53 50

The Netherlands 572 446 349 129 109 97

Italy 680 572 496 253 185 152

All Other

Countries 4,145 3,652 3,331 2,570 1,997 1,957

Consolidated $19,681 $17,685 $16,285 $16,425 $15,137 $14,877

(d) Sales by country are based on the country that sold the product.
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Note 8 — Litigation and Environmental Matters

Abbott is involved in various claims and legal proceedings includ-
ing a number of antitrust suits and investigations in connection
with the pricing of prescription pharmaceuticals. These suits and
investigations allege that various pharmaceutical manufacturers
have conspired to fix prices for prescription pharmaceuticals
and/or to discriminate in pricing to retail pharmacies by providing
discounts to mail-order pharmacies, institutional pharmacies and
HMOs in violation of state and federal antitrust laws. The suits
have been brought on behalf of retail pharmacies and name certain
pharmaceutical manufacturers, including Abbott, as defendants.
The cases seek treble damages, civil penalties, and injunctive and
other relief. Abbott has filed a response to each of the complaints
denying all substantive allegations.

The U.S. Attorney’s office in the Southern District of Illinois is con-
ducting an industry-wide investigation of the enteral nutritional
business. The investigation is both civil and criminal in nature. In
2003, Abbott reached a settlement with the U.S. Attorney resolving
all outstanding allegations by the government, and paid the settle-
ment amount of $614 million, which is classified as Selling, general
and administration expense. Additional costs related to the settle-
ment of $8 million are classified as Cost of products sold.

There are several lawsuits pending in connection with the sales
of Hytrin. These suits allege that Abbott violated state or federal
antitrust laws and, in some cases, unfair competition laws by sign-
ing patent settlement agreements with Geneva Pharmaceuticals,
Inc. and Zenith Laboratories, Inc. in 1998. Those agreements
related to pending patent infringement lawsuits between Abbott
and the two companies. Some of the suits also allege that Abbott
violated various state or federal laws by filing frivolous patent
infringement lawsuits to protect Hytrin from generic competition.
The cases seek treble damages, civil penalties and other relief.
Abbott has filed or intends to file a response to each of the com-
plaints denying all substantive allegations.

Abbott has been identified as a potentially responsible party for
investigation and cleanup costs at a number of locations in the
United States and Puerto Rico under federal and state remediation
laws and is investigating potential contamination at a number of
company-owned locations. Abbott has recorded an estimated
cleanup cost for each site for which management believes Abbott
has a probable loss exposure. No individual site cleanup exposure
is expected to exceed $3 million, and the aggregate cleanup expo-
sure is not expected to exceed $20 million.

Within the next year, legal proceedings may occur that may result
in a change in the estimated reserves recorded by Abbott. For its
legal proceedings and environmental exposures discussed in this
note and in Note 9, Abbott estimates the range of possible loss to
be from approximately $125 million to $200 million. Abbott has
recorded reserves of approximately $140 million for these proceed-
ings and exposures. These reserves represent management’s best
estimate of probable loss, as defined by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies.”

While it is not feasible to predict the outcome of all such proceed-
ings and exposures with certainty, management believes that their
ultimate disposition should not have a material adverse effect on
Abbott’s financial position, cash flows, or results of operations.

Note 9 — TAP Pharmaceutical Products Inc.

TAP Pharmaceutical Products Inc. (TAP) and Abbott have been
named as defendants in several lawsuits alleging violations of vari-
ous state or federal laws in connection with TAP’s marketing and
pricing of Lupron. Abbott has filed or intends to file a response to
each of the lawsuits denying all substantive allegations.

In 2001, TAP entered into an agreement with the U.S. government
to settle matters relating to its investigation involving TAP’s mar-
keting of its prostate cancer drug, Lupron. In 2001, Abbott’s income
from the TAP joint venture was reduced by a charge of $274 mil-
lion relating to this investigation.

Within the next year, legal proceedings may occur that may result
in a change in the estimated reserves recorded by TAP and Abbott.
While it is not feasible to predict the outcome of such pending
claims, proceedings, and investigations with certainty, management
is of the opinion that their ultimate disposition should not have a
material adverse effect on Abbott’s financial position, cash flows,
or results of operations.

Note 10 — Restructuring Plans and Asset Impairments
(dollars in millions)

In October 2002, Abbott announced restructuring plans to align
Abbott’s global manufacturing operations with its scientific focus
and to achieve greater operating efficiencies in its Diagnostic
Products and International segments and recorded a pretax charge
of $174, reflecting the impairment of manufacturing facilities and
other assets, and employee severance charges. Approximately $83 is
classified as Cost of products sold, $5 as Research and development,
and $86 as Selling, general and administrative. The restructuring
plans resulted in the elimination of approximately 2,100 net posi-
tions. Employee groups covered under the restructuring plans
included manufacturing, research and development, and sales and
administrative-related functions. The following summarizes the
restructuring activity:

Employee-
Related Asset

and Other Impairments Total

2002 Restructuring charges $141 $«33 $174

2002 Payments and impairments (37) (33) (70)

Accrued balance at December 31, 2002 104 — 104

2003 Payments, changes in estimate

and foreign currency translation (81) — (81)

Accrued balance at December 31, 2003 $÷23 $«— $÷23

The accrued balance at December 31, 2003 relates primarily to
employee severance obligations, which, by local laws must be paid
over time.



    

In 2001 and 2002, Abbott implemented restructuring plans
related to the operations of the acquired pharmaceutical business
of BASF. In addition, Abbott announced in 2001 that it was closing
one of Abbott’s manufacturing operations and relocating produc-
tion to other Abbott facilities. The following summarizes the
restructuring activity:

Employee-
Related Asset

and Other Impairments Total

2001 Restructuring charges $«195 $«12 $«207

2001 Payments and impairments (106) (12) (118)

Accrued balance at December 31, 2001 89 — 89

2002 Restructuring charges 59 — 59

2002 Payments and foreign

currency translation (80) — (80)

Accrued balance at December 31, 2002 68 — 68

2003 Payments, changes in estimate

and foreign currency translation (57) — (57)

Accrued balance at December 31, 2003 $÷«11 $«— $÷«11

In 2002, the $59 restructuring charge was recorded as goodwill
associated with the acquisition of the pharmaceutical business of
BASF. In 2001, of the total $207 restructuring charges, $156 was
recorded as goodwill associated with the acquisition of the pharma-
ceutical business of BASF. Of the amount expensed, approximately
$36 is classified as Cost of products sold, $2 as Research and
development, and $13 as Selling, general and administrative.
Employee-related costs are primarily severance pay, relocation
of former BASF employees and outplacement services. The restruc-
turing plans resulted in the elimination of approximately 2,400
positions. Employee groups covered under the restructuring plans
included manufacturing, research and development, and sales and
administrative-related functions. The accrued balance at December
31, 2003 relates primarily to employee severance obligations, which,
by local laws must be paid over time.

In 2003, Abbott recorded a charge to Cost of products sold of
approximately $88 million for an impairment of assets and other
expenses as a result of a lower sales forecast for Abbokinase.

Note 11 — Incentive Stock Program

The 1996 Incentive Stock Program authorizes the granting of stock
options, replacement stock options, stock appreciation rights, lim-
ited stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, performance
units and foreign qualified benefits. Stock options, replacement
stock options and restricted stock awards comprise the majority
of benefits that have been granted and are currently outstanding
under this program and prior programs. In 2003, Abbott granted
24,619,775 stock options, 2,845,210 replacement stock options, and

147,153 restricted stock awards under the program. The purchase
price of shares under option must be at least equal to the fair
market value of the common stock on the date of grant, and the
maximum term of an option is 10 years. Options granted in 2003,
2002 and 2001 vest equally over three years except for replacement
options, which vest in six months. When an employee tenders
mature shares to Abbott upon exercise of a stock option, a replace-
ment stock option is granted equal to the amount of shares
tendered. Replacement options are granted at the then current
market price for a term that expires on the date of the underlying
option grant. Upon a change in control of Abbott, all outstanding
stock options become fully exercisable, and all terms and condi-
tions of all restricted stock awards are deemed satisfied. The
expected spin-off of Hospira, as discussed in Note 18, will not
be a change in control under the plan.

At January 1, 2004, 41.8 million shares were reserved for future
grants under the 1996 Program. Subsequent to year-end, the Board
of Directors granted approximately 20.3 million stock options
from this reserve.

Options Outstanding Exercisable Options

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price

January 1, 2001 77,094,181 $33.59

Granted 23,118,789 48.64

Exercised (12,571,690) 28.30

Lapsed (1,369,321) 42.58

December 31, 2001 86,271,959 38.25 50,383,606 $34.13

Granted 24,688,761 56.11

Exercised (10,068,863) 28.09

Lapsed (1,211,101) 48.22

December 31, 2002 99,680,756 43.58 59,224,392 38.48

Granted 27,464,985 36.56

Exercised (7,032,966) 29.08

Lapsed (2,602,110) 47.58

December 31, 2003 117,510,665 $42.71 71,944,163 $41.80

Options Outstanding Exercisable Options

at December 31, 2003 at December 31, 2003

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Range of Average Average Average

Exercise Remaining Exercise Exercise

Prices Shares Life (Years) Price Shares Price

$12«to«$38 52,386,393 6.4 $33.24 29,356,958 $31.56

÷39«to«÷49 38,992,265 6.7 46.41 30,469,163 46.31

÷50«to«÷58 26,132,007 7.9 56.18 12,118,042 55.26

$12«to«$58 117,510,665 6.8 $42.71 71,944,163 $41.80
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Abbott measures compensation cost using the intrinsic value-based
method of accounting for stock options and replacement options
granted to employees. Had compensation cost been determined
using the fair value-based accounting method, pro forma net
income (in billions) and earnings per share (EPS) amounts would
have been as follows:

2003 2002 2001

Net income, as reported $÷2.8 $÷2.8 $÷1.6

Compensation cost under

fair value-based accounting method,

net of tax (0.3) (0.2) (0.2)

Net income, pro forma $÷2.5 $÷2.6 $÷1.4

Basic EPS, as reported $1.76 $1.79 $1.00

Basic EPS, pro forma 1.62 1.65 0.89

Diluted EPS, as reported 1.75 1.78 0.99

Diluted EPS, pro forma 1.62 1.65 0.88

Reported diluted EPS higher than

pro forma diluted EPS 0.13 0.13 0.11

The weighted average fair value of an option granted in 2003, 2002
and 2001 was $8.73, $16.47, and $13.31, respectively. For purposes
of fair value disclosures, the fair value of an option grant was esti-
mated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the
following assumptions:

2003 2002 2001

Risk-Free Interest Rate 2.7% 4.5% 4.9%

Average Life of Options (years) 5.4 5.4 5.4

Volatility 32.0% 28.0% 27.0%

Dividend Yield 2.8% 1.6% 2.0%

Note 12 — U.S. Food and Drug Administration Consent Decree

Under terms of a 1999 consent decree with the U.S. government,
Abbott was prohibited from manufacturing certain diagnostic
products for sale in the U.S. until its Lake County, Ill. manufactur-
ing facilities were found to be in substantial conformity with the
Food and Drug Administration’s (FDA) Quality System Regulation.
In December of 2003, the FDA found the facilities to be in substan-
tial conformity and Abbott can start the process of manufacturing
impacted products for sale in the U.S. In connection with the con-
sent decree, Abbott recorded remediation costs and payments to
the government, including a pretax charge of $129 million in 2002.

Note 13 — Debt and Lines of Credit (dollars in thousands)

The following is a summary of long-term debt at December 31:

2003 2002 2001

5.6% debentures, due 2003 $÷÷÷÷÷÷— $÷÷÷÷÷÷— $÷«200,000

5.125% debentures, due 2004 — 1,650,000 1,650,000

6.8% debentures, due 2005 150,000 150,000 150,000

5.625% debentures, due 2006 1,600,000 1,600,000 1,600,000

6.4% debentures, due 2006 250,000 250,000 250,000

0.77% Yen notes, due 2007 91,324 — —

6.0% debentures, due 2008 200,000 200,000 200,000

5.4% debentures, due 2008 200,000 200,000 200,000

1.05% Yen notes, due 2008 456,621 — —

1.51% Yen notes, due 2010 136,986 — —

1.95% Yen notes, due 2013 228,311 — —

Other, including fair

market value adjustments

relating to interest rate

hedge contracts designated as

fair value hedges 139,087 223,973 85,493

Total, net of current maturities 3,452,329 4,273,973 4,335,493

Current maturities of

long-term debt, including

fair market value adjustments

relating to interest rate

hedge contracts designated as

fair value hedges 1,709,265 221,111 2,379

Total carrying amount $5,161,594 $4,495,084 $4,337,872

Principal payments required on long-term debt outstanding at
December 31, 2003, are $1,656,772 in 2004, $154,587 in 2005,
$1,854,275 in 2006, $91,994 in 2007, $858,189 in 2008, and
$417,053 thereafter.

At December 31, 2003, Abbott had $3,000,000 of unused lines
of credit, which support commercial paper borrowing arrange-
ments. Related compensating balances, which are subject to
withdrawal by Abbott at its option, and commitment fees are not
material. Abbott’s weighted average interest rate on short-term
borrowings was 1.1% at December 31, 2003 and 2002 and 1.9%
at December 31, 2001.

Note 14 — Business Combinations and Technology Acquisitions

In 2003, Abbott acquired ZonePerfect Nutrition Company, a
marketer of healthy and nutritious products for active people, for
approximately $160 million in cash; Integrated Vascular Systems,
Inc., a developer of a novel vessel closure technology, for approxi-
mately $65 million in cash; and Spinal Concepts Inc., a marketer of
spinal fixation products used in the treatment of spinal disorders,
diseases and injuries for approximately $166 million, in cash, plus
additional milestone payments of up to $40 million if agreed upon
targets are met. In 2003, Abbott also acquired the assets of JOMED
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N.V.’s coronary and peripheral interventional business for approxi-
mately $68 million in cash. These acquisitions resulted in a charge
of approximately $100 million for acquired in-process research
and development, intangible assets of approximately $222 million
and non-tax deductible goodwill of approximately $182 million.
Acquired intangible assets, primarily product technology, will be
amortized over 9 to 25 years (average of approximately 16 years).
Had these acquisitions taken place on January 1 of the previous
year, consolidated sales and income would not have been signifi-
cantly different from reported amounts.

In 2002, Abbott acquired the cardiovascular stent business of
Biocompatibles International plc and certain cardiovascular stent
technology rights from Medtronic, Inc. In addition, Abbott
acquired an additional 28.8 percent of the issued common shares
of Hokuriku Seiyaku Co., Ltd., resulting in Abbott owning substan-
tially all of the common shares of Hokuriku Seiyaku Co., Ltd. The
aggregate cash purchase price ($586 million) of these strategic busi-
ness and technology acquisitions resulted in a pretax charge for
acquired in-process research and development of approximately
$108 million, intangible assets of approximately $145 million and
non-tax deductible goodwill of approximately $257 million.
Acquired intangible assets, primarily product technology, are amor-
tized over 4 to 13 years (average of approximately 8 years). Had
these acquisitions taken place on January 1 of the previous year,
consolidated sales and income would not have been significantly
different from reported amounts.

On March 2, 2001, Abbott acquired, for cash, the pharmaceutical
business of BASF, which included the global operations of Knoll
Pharmaceuticals, for approximately $7.2 billion. This acquisition
was financed primarily with short- and long-term borrowings and
is accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. The
acquisition cost has been allocated to intangible assets, $3.5 billion;
goodwill, $2.4 billion; acquired in-process research and develop-
ment, $1.2 billion; and net tangible assets, $0.1 billion, based on an
independent appraisal of fair values. Product rights for marketed
products are amortized on a straight-line basis over 10 to 16 years
(average 13 years), and goodwill was amortized in 2001 on a
straight-line basis over 20 years. Acquired in-process research and
development was charged to expense in 2001. The net tangible assets
acquired consist primarily of property and equipment of approxi-
mately $630 million, trade accounts receivable of approximately
$402 million, and inventories of approximately $275 million, net
of assumed liabilities, primarily trade accounts payable and other
liabilities. Prior to the date of acquisition, Abbott began to plan for
the integration and restructuring of the business. In 2001 and 2002,
Abbott formally approved several restructuring plans and certain
costs of implementing formally approved plans have been included
as goodwill. Had this acquisition taken place on January 1, 2000, pro
forma consolidated sales would have been $16.7 billion, pro forma
net income would have been $2.3 billion and pro forma diluted
earnings per share would have been $1.46.

In 2001, Abbott acquired, for cash, all of the outstanding common
stock of Vysis, Inc., a leading genomic disease management com-
pany. Of the cash acquisition cost of approximately $362 million,
$162 million was allocated to developed technology, which is amor-
tized over 15 years, and $143 million was charged against earnings
in 2001 for acquired in-process research and development. The
remaining acquisition cost was allocated to net tangible assets and
goodwill. Had this acquisition taken place on January 1 of the pre-
vious year, consolidated sales and income would not have been
significantly different from reported amounts.

Note 15 — Goodwill and Intangible Assets
(dollars in millions except per share amounts)

Effective with the adoption of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets,” on January 1, 2002, goodwill is no longer
subject to amortization over its estimated useful life. Goodwill is
subject to at least an annual assessment of impairment by applying
a fair-value-based test. Abbott assesses goodwill impairment in the
third quarter of each year. Had goodwill and certain intangible
assets not been subject to amortization in 2001, the transitional
pro forma net income would have been higher by approximately
$106 and transitional pro forma diluted earnings per share would
have been higher by $0.07.

Abbott recorded goodwill of $182 and $316 in 2003 and 2002,
respectively, related to acquisitions. Foreign currency translation
adjustments increased goodwill in 2003 and 2002 by approximately
$522 and $251, respectively. There were no reductions of goodwill
in 2003 relating to impairments or disposal of all or a portion
of a business.

The gross amount of amortizable intangible assets, primarily prod-
uct rights and technology, was $4,841, $4,504, and $4,359 as of
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and accumulated
amortization was $899, $733, and $390 as of December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively. The net amount of intangible assets
with indefinite lives, primarily registered trade names, not subject
to amortization was $148 at December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001.
The estimated annual amortization expense for intangible assets is
$374 in 2004, $367 in 2005, $364 in 2006, $351 in 2007, and $328 in
2008. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over
4 to 25 years (average 14 years).

Note 16 — Equity Method Investments
(dollars in millions)

Abbott’s 50 percent-owned joint venture, TAP Pharmaceutical
Products Inc. (TAP), is accounted for under the equity method
of accounting. The investment in TAP was $340, $370, and $392
at December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. Dividends
received from TAP were $606, $695, and $433 in 2003, 2002, and
2001, respectively. Abbott’s income from the TAP joint venture
is recognized net of consolidating adjustments. Abbott performs
certain administrative, selling and manufacturing services for



    

TAP at negotiated rates that approximate fair market value for the
services performed. Summarized financial information for TAP
is as follows:

Year Ended December 31 2003 2002 2001

Net sales $3,979.6 $4,037.4 $3,787.2

Cost of sales 1,066.8 884.1 938.6

Income before taxes 1,815.5 2,081.4 1,204.1

Net income 1,161.9 1,333.5 669.9

December 31 2003 2002 2001

Current assets $1,451.6 $1,176.8 $1,191.2

Total assets 1,718.1 1,580.3 1,568.3

Current liabilities 965.8 791.6 713.1

Total liabilities 1,037.2 839.8 804.7

Undistributed earnings of investments accounted for under the
equity method amounted to $315 as of December 31, 2003.

Note 17 — Stock Purchase Rights

Common shares outstanding are subject to stock purchase rights.
The rights are exercisable only if a person or group acquires ten
percent or more of Abbott common shares or announces a tender
or exchange offer which would result in ownership of ten percent
or more of Abbott common shares. Following the acquisition of
ten percent or more of Abbott’s common shares, the holders of the
rights, other than the acquiring person or group, may purchase
Abbott common shares at half price. In the event of a merger or
other acquisition of Abbott, the holders of the rights, other than
the acquiring person or group, may purchase shares of the acquir-
ing entity at half price. The rights were not exercisable at
December 31, 2003.

Note 18 — Spin-off of Abbott’s Core Hospital Products Business

In August 2003, Abbott announced a plan to create a separate
publicly traded company for its existing core hospital products
business. The new company, Hospira, Inc., will include the opera-
tions relating to the manufacture and sale of hospital products
including specialty injectable pharmaceuticals, medication delivery
systems and critical care devices and injectable pharmaceutical
contract manufacturing. Hospira, which is expected to be spun
off by Abbott in the first half of 2004 pending final approval of the
distribution by Abbott’s Board of Directors, will include most of
Abbott’s Hospital Products segment and portions of Abbott’s
International segment. All of the shares of Hospira’s common stock
will be distributed to Abbott shareholders in a tax-free distribution
on a pro-rata basis. Abbott has received a ruling from the Internal
Revenue Service that the spin-off qualifies as a tax-free distribu-
tion. Hospira will borrow or assume approximately $750 million of
debt, the proceeds of which will be retained by Abbott to pay down
domestic commercial paper borrowings. Hospira has filed a pre-
liminary Form 10 with the Securities and Exchange Commission

which includes unaudited pro forma annual net sales of approxi-
mately $2.4 billion, unaudited pro forma annual earnings before
income taxes of approximately $350 million and annual net cash
flow from operating and investing activities of approximately
$340 million. Subsequent to the spin-off, the financial results of
Hospira will be presented as discontinued operations in Abbott’s
financial statements.

Note 19 — Quarterly Results (Unaudited)
(dollars in millions except per share data)

2003 2002 2001

First Quarter

Net Sales $4,580.5 $4,189.3 $3,559.9

Gross Profit 2,382.7 2,293.2 1,916.6

Net Earnings (Loss) (a) 801.0 854.3 (223.6)

Basic Earnings (Loss)

Per Common Share (a) .51 .55 (.14)

Diluted Earnings (Loss)

Per Common Share (a) .51 .54 (.14)

Market Price Per Share–High 40.85 58.00 50.55

Market Price Per Share–Low 33.75 51.40 42.00

Second Quarter

Net Sales $4,723.6 $4,314.9 $4,099.1

Gross Profit 2,452.8 2,148.3 2,116.1

Net Earnings (b) 246.6 592.3 529.0

Basic Earnings Per Common Share (b) .16 .38 .34

Diluted Earnings Per Common Share (b) .16 .38 .34

Market Price Per Share–High 46.94 55.23 54.00

Market Price Per Share–Low 37.57 35.25 43.43

Third Quarter

Net Sales $4,845.9 $4,341.2 $4,181.2

Gross Profit 2,499.1 2,273.7 2,140.3

Net Earnings 761.2 720.1 631.4

Basic Earnings Per Common Share .49 .46 .41

Diluted Earnings Per Common Share .48 .46 .40

Market Price Per Share–High 45.09 43.85 53.82

Market Price Per Share–Low 37.65 29.80 46.35

Fourth Quarter

Net Sales $5,530.6 $4,839.3 $4,445.1

Gross Profit 2,872.5 2,463.2 2,364.0

Net Earnings 944.4 627.0 613.6

Basic Earnings Per Common Share .60 .40 .39

Diluted Earnings Per Common Share .60 .40 .39

Market Price Per Share–High 47.15 46.08 57.17

Market Price Per Share–Low 39.95 36.26 50.40

(a) First-quarter 2001 included a pretax charge for acquired in-process research

and development of $1,015 related to the acquisition of the pharmaceutical

business of BASF.

(b) Second-quarter 2003 included a pretax charge of $622 for the settlement of the

Ross enteral nutritional investigation.
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To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Abbott Laboratories:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
of Abbott Laboratories and subsidiaries (the Company) as of
December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated state-
ments of earnings and comprehensive income, shareholders’
investment, and cash flows for each of the years then ended.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
The consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2001, prior to the addition of
certain 2001 disclosures discussed in Note 5 and Note 15, were
audited by other auditors who have ceased operations. Those
auditors expressed in their report dated January 15, 2002 an
unqualified opinion on those statements.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of mater-
ial misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting princi-
ples used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Abbott
Laboratories and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 15, effective January 1, 2002, the Company
changed its method of accounting for goodwill and intangible
assets upon adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

As discussed above, the consolidated financial statements of the
Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2001 were
audited by other auditors who have ceased operations. These
consolidated financial statements have been revised to include the
disclosures required by SFAS No. 132, “Employers’ Disclosures
about Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits” as revised in
2003. We audited certain 2001 disclosures in Note 5. As described
in Note 15, these consolidated financial statements have also been

revised to include the transitional disclosures required by SFAS
No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” We audited the
transitional disclosures in Note 15. In our opinion, the additional
2001 disclosures in Note 5 and the transitional disclosures for 2001
in Note 15 are appropriate. However, we were not engaged to audit,
review, or apply any procedures to the 2001 consolidated financial
statements of the Company other than with respect to such disclo-
sures and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other
form of assurance on the 2001 consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, Illinois
February 11, 2004

To the Shareholders of Abbott Laboratories:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of
Abbott Laboratories (an Illinois corporation) and Subsidiaries as
of December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, and the related consolidated
statement of earnings and comprehensive income, shareholders’
investment, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of Abbott’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material mis-
statement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Abbott Laboratories and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001,
2000, and 1999, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States.

Arthur Andersen LLP (1)
Chicago, Illinois
January 15, 2002

(1) This report is a copy of the previously issued report covering 2001, 2000 and 1999.

The predecessor auditors have not reissued their report.
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Management has prepared, and is responsible for, Abbott’s consoli-
dated financial statements and related notes. They have been
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting princi-
ples and necessarily include amounts based on judgments and
estimates by management. All financial information in this annual
report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements.

Abbott maintains internal accounting control systems and related
policies and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance
that assets are safeguarded, that transactions are executed in accor-
dance with management’s authorization and properly recorded, and
that accounting records may be relied upon for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements and other financial information.
The design, monitoring and revision of internal accounting control
systems involve, among other things, management’s judgment with
respect to the relative cost and expected benefits of specific control
measures. Abbott also maintains an internal auditing function that
evaluates and formally reports on the adequacy and effectiveness of
internal accounting controls, policies and procedures.

Abbott’s consolidated financial statements have been audited by
independent public accountants who have expressed their opinions
with respect to the fairness of these statements.

Miles D. White
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Thomas C. Freyman
Executive Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer

Greg W. Linder
Vice President and Controller
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Interest Rate Sensitive Financial Instruments

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, Abbott had interest rate hedge
contracts totaling $3.250 billion and $2.450 billion, respectively,
to manage its exposure to changes in the fair value of debt due
in July 2004 and 2006. Abbott does not use derivative financial
instruments, such as interest rate swaps, to manage its exposure
to changes in interest rates for its investment securities. As of
December 31, 2003 and 2002, Abbott had $806 million and
$1.6 billion, respectively, of domestic commercial paper outstand-
ing with an average interest rate of 1.1% and 1.3%, respectively,
and with an average remaining life of 29 days and 24 days, respec-
tively. The fair market value of long-term debt at December 31,
2003 and 2002, amounted to $5.4 billion and $4.6 billion, respec-
tively, and consisted primarily of fixed-rate (average of 4.7% and
5.5%, respectively) debt with maturities through 2023. As of
December 31, 2003 and 2002, the fair market value of current and
long-term investment securities amounted to $316 million and
$283 million, respectively. A hypothetical 100-basis point change
in the interest rates would not have a material effect on cash flows,
income or market values. (A 100-basis point change is believed
to be a reasonably possible near-term change in rates.)

Market Price Sensitive Financial Instruments

Abbott maintains a portfolio of available-for-sale equity securities
from strategic technology acquisitions. The market value of these
investments was approximately $331 million and $175 million,
respectively, as of December 31, 2003 and 2002. Abbott monitors
these investments for other than temporary declines in market
value, and charges impairment losses to income when an other
than temporary decline in estimated value occurs. A hypothetical
20 percent decrease in the share prices of these investments would
decrease their fair value at December 31, 2003 by approximately
$66 million. (A 20 percent decrease is believed to be a reasonably
possible near-term change in share prices.)

Non-Publicly Traded Equity Securities

Abbott maintains a portfolio of equity securities from strategic tech-
nology acquisitions that are not traded on public stock exchanges.
The carrying value of these investments was approximately $50 mil-
lion and $48 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2003 and
2002. Abbott monitors these investments for other than temporary
declines in market value, and charges impairment losses to income
when an other than temporary decline in estimated value occurs.

Foreign Currency Sensitive Financial Instruments

Abbott enters into foreign currency forward exchange contracts
to manage its exposure to foreign currency denominated intercom-
pany loans and trade payables and third-party trade payables and
receivables. The contracts are marked-to-market, and resulting
gains or losses are reflected in income and are generally offset by
losses or gains on the foreign currency exposure being managed.
At December 31, 2003 and 2002, Abbott held $3.0 billion and
$1.9 billion, respectively, of such contracts, which all mature in
the next calendar year.

In addition, certain Abbott foreign subsidiaries enter into
foreign currency forward exchange contracts to manage exposures
to changes in foreign exchange rates for anticipated intercompany
purchases by those subsidiaries whose functional currencies are
not the U.S. dollar. These contracts are designated as cash flow
hedges of the variability of the cash flows due to changes in foreign
exchange rates and are marked-to-market with the resulting gains or
losses reflected in Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).
Gains or losses will be included in Cost of products sold at the time
the products are sold, generally within the next calendar year.
At December 31, 2003 and 2002, Abbott held $602 million and
$857 million, respectively, of such contracts, which all mature in
the next calendar year.

The following table reflects the total foreign currency forward
contracts outstanding at December 31, 2003 and 2002:

2003 2002

Average Fair and Average Fair and

Contract Exchange Carrying Contract Exchange Carrying

(dollars in millions) Amount Rate Value Amount Rate Value

Receive primarily U.S. Dollars

in exchange for the following currencies:

Euro $1,887 1.19 $(11.8) $1,148 0.99 $÷(8.5)

British Pound 799 0.59 (11.2) 511 0.65 (4.4)

Japanese Yen 229 108.9 0.6 288 121.1 1.0

Canadian Dollar 240 0.76 (2.4) 251 0.64 0.6

All other currencies 432 N/A (5.5) 539 N/A (6.5)

Total $3,587 $(30.3) $2,737 $(17.8)
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Abbott’s revenues are derived primarily from the sale of a broad
line of health care products manufactured in Abbott facilities
and sold to customers under short-term receivable arrangements.
Patent protection and licenses, technological and performance
features, and inclusion of Abbott’s products under a contract or by
a pharmacy benefit manager most impact which products are sold;
price controls, competition and rebates most impact the net selling
prices of products; and foreign currency translation impacts the
measurement of net sales. Abbott’s primary products are prescrip-
tion pharmaceuticals, diagnostic testing products, nutritional and
hospital products.

Acquisitions, and regulatory issues, and legal issues have impacted
Abbott sales, costs and financial position over the last three years.

In 2001, Abbott acquired the Knoll pharmaceutical business from
BASF for $7.2 billion and financed the purchase with debt. The
Knoll business increased the scale of Abbott’s pharmaceutical
business, and added significant commercial and research and
development capabilities. Also, during the last three years, Abbott
financed with debt and cash the acquisitions of several businesses
and technologies targeted to deliver sales growth. As a result of
these acquisitions, Abbott recorded goodwill and intangibles of
$7.0 billion, net of amortization, and acquired in-process research
and development of $1.5 billion.

A portion of Abbott’s diagnostic business was subject to product
distribution restrictions due to a regulatory review in 1999, and
net sales and costs were impacted in this segment as a result of
these restrictions. In late 2003, Abbott was informed that it may
now distribute the products that were impacted by these restric-
tions. Also, in 2003, Abbott settled its portion of an industry-wide
investigation of the enteral nutritional business for $614 million.

Abbott’s short- and long-term debt total $5.9 billion at
December 31, 2003, largely reflecting the acquisitions described
above. Abbott has two acquisitions pending with aggregate pur-
chase amounts of $1.6 billion, which will be financed through a
combination of operating cash flow, domestic commercial paper
borrowings and long-term debt. At December 31, 2003, Abbott’s
long-term debt rating was AA by Standard and Poor’s and A1 by
Moody’s Investors Service.

In 2003, Abbott announced that it would distribute the shares of
its core hospital products business, Hospira, Inc., to Abbott share-
holders in a tax-free spin-off. The Hospira business is comprised
of a large portion of the Hospital Products segment and a small
portion of the International segment. Annual sales of Hospira are
approximately $2.4 billion. Subsequent to the spin-off, the historical
results of Hospira will be presented as discontinued operations.
The distribution is expected to occur in the first half of 2004.

In 2004, Abbott will focus on several key initiatives. In the
Pharmaceutical Products Group, which includes the Pharmaceutical
Products and International segments, Abbott’s penetration of the
rheumatoid arthritis market will continue with the global launch
of Humira; Abbott expects worldwide sales of Humira to exceed
$700 million in 2004. Pharmaceutical research and development
efforts will continue to be focused in five therapeutic areas with a
significant portion of the development expenditures allocated to
new Humira indications. Abbott is also realigning its pharmaceutical
manufacturing operations under a global structure to create a
world-class supply chain that better aligns the commercial, research
and manufacturing organizations.

In the Medical Products Group, which includes the Diagnostic
Products, Hospital Products and Ross Products segments, the
Hospira spin-off is projected to take place in the first half of 2004.
In 2003, the focus within the Medical Products Group was on
repositioning the various businesses for higher growth. The focus
in 2004 will be on executing the major initiatives already under
way, including increasing the consumer presence of the Ross nutri-
tional business, integrating recent acquisitions, and positioning the
vascular, molecular and blood glucose monitoring businesses to
deliver strong sales growth. Also in 2004, following the successful
inspection of the Lake County diagnostic facility, stabilization and
re-acceleration of sales growth in the immunoassay business is
expected to be accomplished through focus on near-term product
launches and commercial execution.

Critical Accounting Policies

Litigation — Abbott accounts for litigation losses in accordance
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 5,
“Accounting for Contingencies.” Under SFAS No. 5, loss contin-
gency provisions are recorded for probable losses at management’s
best estimate of a loss, or when a best estimate cannot be made, a
minimum loss contingency amount is recorded. These estimates
are often initially developed substantially earlier than the ultimate
loss is known, and the estimates are refined each accounting period,
as additional information becomes known. Accordingly, Abbott is
often initially unable to develop a best estimate of loss, and there-
fore the minimum amount, which could be zero, is recorded.
As information becomes known, either the minimum loss amount
is increased, resulting in additional loss provisions, or a best
estimate can be made, also resulting in additional loss provisions.
Occasionally, a best estimate amount is changed to a lower amount
when events result in an expectation of a more favorable outcome
than previously expected. For its legal proceedings and environ-
mental exposures, Abbott estimates the range of possible loss
to be from approximately $125 million to $200 million. Abbott
has recorded reserves of approximately $140 million for these
proceedings and exposures. These reserves represent management’s
best estimate of probable loss, as defined by SFAS No. 5.



    

Sales Rebates — A large part of Abbott’s domestic businesses sell
products to distributors who resell the products to the end cus-
tomers. Abbott must provide rebates to members of buying groups
who purchase from Abbott’s distributors, to distributors that sell
to their customers at prices determined under a contract between
Abbott and the customer, or to state agencies, which administer
various programs such as the federal Medicaid and Medicare pro-
grams and the Special Supplemental Food Program for Women,
Infants, and Children (WIC). Rebate amounts are usually based
upon the volume of purchases or by reference to a specific price
for a product. Factors that complicate the rebate calculations are
identification of which products have been sold subject to a rebate,
which customer or government price terms apply, and the esti-
mated lag time between sale and payment of a rebate. Using
historical trends, adjusted for current changes, Abbott estimates
the amount of the rebate that will be paid, and records the liability
as a reduction of gross sales when Abbott records its sale of the
product. Settlement of the rebate generally occurs from three to
24 months after sale. Abbott regularly analyzes the historical rebate
trends and makes adjustments to recorded reserves for changes
in trends and terms of rebate programs. Rebates charged against
gross sales in 2003 amounted to approximately $2.6 billion, or
28.3 percent, based on gross sales of approximately $9.2 billion.
A one-percentage point increase in the percentage of rebates to
related gross sales would decrease net sales and operating income
by approximately $92 million.

Income Taxes — Abbott operates in numerous countries where its
income tax returns are subject to audits and adjustments. Because
Abbott operates globally, the nature of the audit items are often very
complex, and the objectives of the government auditors can result in
a tax on the same income in more than one country. The company
employs internal and external tax professionals to minimize audit
adjustment amounts where possible. As part of Abbott’s calculation
of the provision for taxes on earnings, Abbott records the amount
that it expects to incur as a result of audits. In the United States,
Abbott’s income tax returns for years after 1992 are open.

Pension and Post-Employment Benefits — Abbott offers pension
benefits and post-employment health care to many of its employ-
ees. Abbott engages outside actuaries to calculate its obligations
and costs under these programs. With the assistance of outside
actuaries, Abbott must develop long-term assumptions, the most
significant of which are the health care cost trend rate, discount
rate and the expected return on plan assets. A difference between
the assumed rates and the actual rates, which will not be known
for decades, can be significant in relation to the obligations and the
annual cost recorded for these programs. Differences between the
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expected long-term return on plan assets and the actual annual
return are amortized over a five-year period. Note 5 to the consoli-
dated financial statements describes the impact of a one-percentage
point change in the health care cost trend rate; however, there can
be no certainty that a change would be limited to only one percent-
age point. In 2003 and 2002, Abbott recorded minimum pension
liability adjustments of $155 million and $343 million, respectively,
because the accumulated benefit obligations for certain domestic
and international defined benefit plans exceeded the market value
of the plans’ assets. This resulted in charges to Accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) of $99 million and $203 million, net
of taxes, in 2003 and 2002, respectively. The weighted average
discount rate used at December 31, 2003 for determining the
accumulated benefit obligations for defined benefit plans whose
accumulated benefit obligations were in excess of plan assets was
5.9 percent. A one-percentage point reduction in the discount rate
at December 31, 2003 would result in an increase in the minimum
pension liability adjustments and an increase in the charge to
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) of approximately
$780 million and $500 million, respectively.

Valuation of Intangible Assets — Abbott has acquired and continues
to acquire significant intangible assets that Abbott values and
records. Those assets which do not yet have regulatory approval
and for which there are no alternative uses are expensed as acquired
in-process research and development, and those that have regula-
tory approval are capitalized. Transactions involving the purchase
or sale of intangible assets occur with some frequency between
companies in the health care field, and valuations are usually based
on a discounted cash flow analysis. Abbott uses a discounted cash
flow model to value acquired intangible assets. The discounted cash
flow model requires assumptions about the timing and amount of
future net cash inflows, risk, the cost of capital, and terminal values.
Each of these factors can significantly affect the value of the intan-
gible asset. Abbott engages independent valuation experts who
review Abbott’s critical assumptions and calculations for significant
acquisitions of intangibles. Abbott reviews intangible assets for
impairment each quarter using an undiscounted net cash flows
approach. If the undiscounted cash flows of an intangible asset are
less than the carrying value of an intangible asset, the intangible
asset is written down to its fair value, which is usually the dis-
counted cash flow amount. Where cash flows cannot be identified
for an individual asset, the review is applied at the lowest group
level for which cash flows are identifiable. Goodwill is reviewed
for impairment annually or when an event that could result in
an impairment of goodwill occurs. During the last three years,
the increase in acquired intangible assets, net of amortization, and
goodwill amounted to approximately $3.2 billion and $3.8 billion,
respectively. Amortization of intangible assets amounted to
approximately $363 million in 2003.
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Results of Operations
Sales

The following table details the components of sales growth by
segment for the last three years:

Total % Components of Change %

Total Net Sales Change Price Volume Exchange

2003 vs. 2002 11.3 1.0 6.8 3.5

2002 vs. 2001 8.6 0.7 8.5 (0.6)

2001 vs. 2000 18.5 0.5 20.3 (2.3)

Total U.S.

2003 vs. 2002 9.2 1.0 8.2 —

2002 vs. 2001 7.4 0.5 6.9 —

2001 vs. 2000 17.2 0.5 16.7 —

Total International

2003 vs. 2002 14.5 1.0 4.4 9.1

2002 vs. 2001 10.6 1.0 11.1 (1.5)

2001 vs. 2000 20.7 0.6 26.1 (6.0)

Pharmaceutical Products Segment

2003 vs. 2002 22.3 3.7 18.6 —

2002 vs. 2001 13.5 3.9 9.6 —

2001 vs. 2000 (a) 45.7 2.3 43.4 —

Diagnostic Products Segment

2003 vs. 2002 5.0 — (1.8) 6.8

2002 vs. 2001 (1.1) (0.1) (0.6) (0.4)

2001 vs. 2000 0.2 (0.2) 4.2 (3.8)

Hospital Products Segment

2003 vs. 2002 3.3 (0.2) 3.5 —

2002 vs. 2001 7.2 (0.6) 7.8 —

2001 vs. 2000 10.8 (1.2) 12.0 —

Ross Products Segment

2003 vs. 2002 2.3 (0.9) 3.2 —

2002 vs. 2001 — (2.2) 2.2 —

2001 vs. 2000 2.6 2.1 0.5 —

International Segment

2003 vs. 2002 12.9 1.6 2.8 8.5

2002 vs. 2001 14.0 1.3 14.6 (1.9)

2001 vs. 2000 (a) 33.6 0.4 39.2 (6.0)

(a) In 2001, Pharmaceutical Products and International segment sales were

favorably impacted compared to 2000 by the acquisition of the pharmaceutical

business of BASF.

A comparison of the product group sales by segment is as follows
(dollars in millions):

Percent Percent Percent

2003 Change 2002 Change 2001 Change

Pharmaceutical Products —

Neuroscience $÷«886 3 $÷«861 (1) $÷«869 12

Anti-Infectives 786 22 644 3 627 1

Diabetes/Metabolism 633 12 564 7 529 N/A

Cardiology 672 42 473 52 310 105

Anti-Viral 429 13 380 27 298 109

Immunology 246 N/A — — — —

Diagnostic Products —

Immunochemistry 2,172 4 2,096 (3) 2,170 (3)

Glucose 542 10 494 8 455 5

Hematology 230 8 212 (4) 220 3

Hospital Products —

Specialty Injectable

Pharmaceuticals 858 (2) 871 7 811 6

Medication Delivery

Systems and Critical

Care Devices 823 1 819 2 805 6

Hospital

Pharmaceuticals 837 9 770 16 665 21

Ross Products —

Pediatric Nutritionals 1,093 9 1,003 (4) 1,041 —

Adult Nutritionals 809 (3) 838 1 833 4

International —

Other

Pharmaceuticals 2,629 15 2,287 31 1,742 152

Anti-Infectives 766 10 696 (2) 708 (8)

Hospital Products 880 12 785 3 759 (2)

Pediatric Nutritionals 527 8 486 1 480 9

Adult Nutritionals 591 12 528 4 508 —

Sales of new products in 2003 are estimated to be approximately
$940 million, led by the Pharmaceutical Products, Hospital
Products and International segments. Sales increases in the
Pharmaceutical Products segment for Anti-Infectives in 2003 and
Cardiology for all three years represent primarily volume increases.
The effect of the relatively weaker U.S. dollar in 2003 favorably
impacted sales in the Diagnostic Products and International
segments. The sales increase in 2003 for Pediatric Nutritionals in
the Ross Products segment was due to increased penetration of
Similac Advance as well as incremental sales related to Abbott’s
award of the WIC contract in California. The acquisition of the
pharmaceutical business of BASF in 2001 favorably impacted
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the Diabetes/Metabolism and Cardiology product sales of the
Pharmaceutical Products segment and the Other Pharmaceuticals
product sales of the International segment for 2001. Abbott has
periodically sold product rights to non-strategic products and has
recorded the related gains in net sales in accordance with Abbott’s
revenue recognition policies as discussed in Note 1. Gains recorded
in net sales were $241 million in 2003, $164 million in 2002 and
$44 million in 2001.

On December 31, 2002, the FDA approved Humira for the treat-
ment of rheumatoid arthritis and in September 2003, the European
Union approved Humira. U.S. sales of Humira, reported in
Immunology product sales, were $246 million in 2003, and interna-
tional sales of Humira were $34 million in 2003. Worldwide sales
of Humira are forecasted to be more than $700 million in 2004.

The expiration of licenses or patent protection can affect the future
revenues and operating income of Abbott. Significant patent expi-
rations and activities in the next three years are as follows. The
original U.S. compound patent on clarithromycin expires in 2005.
Approximately 61% of the U.S. sales of clarithromycin in 2003
were made under a form covered by patents that expire after 2005.
U.S. sales of clarithromycin were $538 million in 2003. Abbott
markets TriCor in the U.S. under a license agreement and patents
covering TriCor are being challenged by competitors. Abbott
is vigorously defending the patents. U.S. sales of TriCor were
$566 million in 2003. Abbott’s NDA for Synthroid, which is not
protected by a patent, was approved by the FDA in 2002. The FDA
is studying the conditions under which competitors may rely on
Abbott’s NDA to market a competitive product and could grant
approval for such generic products at any time. U.S. sales of
Synthroid were $565 million in 2003.

Operating Earnings

Gross profit margins were 51.9 percent of net sales in 2003 and
2002 compared to 52.4 percent in 2001. The gross profit margin
for 2003 was impacted by a charge of $88 million for an impair-
ment of assets and other expenses as a result of a lower sales
forecast for Abbokinase; partially offset by favorable product mix,
resulting mainly from increased sales in the Pharmaceutical
Products segment. The gross profit margin for 2002 included the
effects of the FDA consent decree charge, restructuring charges,
both as discussed below, and unfavorable product mix; partially
offset by the absence of goodwill amortization in 2002. The
decrease in the gross profit margin in 2001 was due primarily to
increased goodwill and intangibles amortization and integration
charges as a result of the acquisition of the pharmaceutical business
of BASF. Gross profit margins in all years were also affected by pro-
ductivity improvements, higher project expenses for new products,
higher manufacturing capacity costs for anticipated unit growth,
and the effects of inflation and competitive pricing pressures.

In the U.S., states receive price rebates from manufacturers of
infant formula under the federally subsidized Special Supplemental
Food Program for Women, Infants, and Children. There are also
rebate programs for pharmaceutical products. These rebate pro-
grams continue to have a negative effect on the gross profit margins
of the Ross and Pharmaceutical Products segments. In addition,
pricing pressures unfavorably impacted the gross profit margins for
the Ross Products segment.

The gross profit margins for the Pharmaceutical Products
segment were favorably impacted in 2003 and 2001 by favorable
product mix and unfavorably impacted in 2002 by unfavorable
product mix. In addition, the gross profit margin in 2003 for the
Pharmaceutical Products segment was unfavorably impacted by
higher costs for co-promoted products and higher other manufac-
turing costs. The gross profit margins for the Diagnostic Products
segment were impacted by the effect of the consent decree for all
three years, as discussed below.

Under terms of a 1999 consent decree with the U.S. government,
Abbott was prohibited from manufacturing certain diagnostic
products for sale in the U.S. until its Lake County, Ill. manufactur-
ing facilities were found to be in substantial conformity with the
Food and Drug Administration’s (FDA) Quality System Regulation.
In December of 2003, the FDA found the facilities to be in substan-
tial conformity and Abbott can start the process of manufacturing
impacted products for sale in the U.S. In connection with the con-
sent decree, Abbott recorded remediation costs and payments to
the government, including a pretax charge of $129 million in 2002.

Research and development expense, excluding acquired in-process
research and development, was $1.7 billion in 2003 and $1.6 billion
in 2002 and 2001, and represented 8.8 percent of net sales in 2003
and 2002 compared to 9.7 percent of net sales in 2001. The decline
in research and development as a percentage of sales in 2003 and
2002 compared to 2001 was due, in part, to the decline in spending
on Phase III clinical trials in 2003 and 2002. The majority of
research and development expenditures are concentrated on
pharmaceutical products.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased 26.9 percent
in 2003 compared to increases of 6.5 percent in 2002 and 29.0 per-
cent in 2001. In 2003, Abbott recorded in Selling, general and
administrative expense, a pretax charge of $614 million related to
the settlement of the Ross enteral nutritional investigation. This
charge increased selling, general and administration expenses by
15.4 percent over 2002. The increases in selling, general and admin-
istrative expenses, excluding the charge for the investigation, were
due primarily to increased selling and marketing support for new
and existing products, including accelerated spending for the
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launch of Humira, due to its earlier-than-expected FDA approval,
as well as spending on other marketed pharmaceutical products.
The increase in selling, general and administration in 2001 reflects
the acquisition of the pharmaceutical business of BASF in 2001.
Increases in all three years also reflect inflation and additional
selling and marketing support primarily in the Pharmaceutical
Products, International, and Hospital Products segments.

Net Interest Expense

Net interest expense decreased in 2003 and 2002 due to a lower
level of borrowings and lower interest rates.

(Income) From TAP Pharmaceutical Products Inc. Joint Venture

Abbott’s income from the TAP Pharmaceutical Products Inc. (TAP)
joint venture was lower in 2003 reflecting decreased sales and
a higher level of selling and marketing spending and, in 2001,
reflecting the settlement of the U.S. government’s investigation
of TAP’s marketing of Lupron, as discussed in Note 9.

Other (Income) Expense, net

Other (income) expense, net for 2002 and 2001 includes charges of
$211 million and $99 million, respectively, as a result of other than
temporary declines in the market values of certain equity securities.

Taxes on Earnings

The effective income tax rates were 26.3 percent in 2003, 24.0 per-
cent in 2002 and 17.7 percent in 2001. The effective tax rate for
2003 includes the effect of the charge for the settlement of the Ross
enteral nutritional investigation and the charges for acquired in-
process research and development. The effect of these substantially
nondeductible charges for 2003 was to increase the effective tax rate
by 2.3 percentage points. The 2001 tax rate is lower than the 2003
and 2002 tax rates due primarily to the effect of the benefit of tax
exemptions in several taxing jurisdictions in relation to Abbott’s
lower pretax income in 2001 compared to 2003 and 2002. This
had the effect of decreasing the effective tax rate by 8.3 percentage
points. The 2002 tax rate is lower than the 2001 tax rate, excluding
the effects of the acquisitions of the pharmaceutical business of
BASF and of Vysis, Inc. in 2001, due in part to the domestic
dividend exclusion applicable to the increased earnings of TAP
Pharmaceutical Products Inc. Abbott expects to apply an annual
effective rate of 24.5 percent in 2004 due, in part, to the compara-
tively lower benefit from the domestic dividend exclusion
compared to Abbott’s total pretax income. Acquired in-process
research and development relating to pending 2004 business acqui-
sitions, as discussed below, will be tax effected at discrete tax rates.

Spin-off of Abbott’s Core Hospital Products Business

In August 2003, Abbott announced a plan to create a separate pub-
licly traded company for its existing core hospital products business.
The new company, Hospira, Inc., will include the operations relating
to the manufacture and sale of hospital products including specialty
injectable pharmaceuticals, medication delivery systems and critical
care devices and injectable pharmaceutical contract manufacturing.
Hospira, which is expected to be spun off by Abbott in the first half
of 2004 pending final approval of the distribution by Abbott’s Board
of Directors, will include most of Abbott’s Hospital Products seg-
ment and portions of Abbott’s International segment. All of the
shares of Hospira’s common stock will be distributed to Abbott
shareholders in a tax-free distribution on a pro-rata basis. Abbott
has received a ruling from the Internal Revenue Service that the
spin-off qualifies as a tax-free distribution. Hospira will borrow or
assume approximately $750 million of debt, the proceeds of which
will be retained by Abbott to pay down domestic commercial paper
borrowings. Hospira has filed a preliminary Form 10 with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, which includes 2002 pro
forma annual net sales of approximately $2.4 billion, pro forma
annual earnings before income taxes of approximately $350 million
and annual net cash flow from operating and investing activities of
approximately $340 million. Subsequent to the spin-off, the finan-
cial results of Hospira will be presented as discontinued operations
in Abbott’s financial statements.

Business Combinations and Technology Acquisitions

In 2003, Abbott acquired ZonePerfect Nutritional Company,
a marketer of healthy and nutritious products for active people, for
approximately $160 million in cash; Integrated Vascular Systems,
Inc., a developer of a novel vessel closure technology, for approxi-
mately $65 million in cash; and Spinal Concepts Inc., a marketer of
spinal fixation products used in the treatment of spinal disorders,
diseases and injuries for approximately $166 million, in cash, plus
additional milestone payments of up to $40 million if agreed upon
targets are met. In 2003, Abbott also acquired the assets of JOMED
N.V.’s coronary and peripheral interventional business for approxi-
mately $68 million in cash. These acquisitions resulted in a charge
of approximately $100 million for acquired in-process research and
development, intangible assets of approximately $222 million and
non-tax deductible goodwill of approximately $182 million.
Acquired intangible assets, primarily product technology, will be
amortized over 9 to 25 years (average of approximately 16 years).
Had these acquisitions taken place on January 1 of the previous
year, consolidated sales and income would not have been signifi-
cantly different from reported amounts.

In 2002, Abbott acquired the cardiovascular stent business of
Biocompatibles International plc and certain cardiovascular stent
technology rights from Medtronic, Inc. In addition, Abbott
acquired an additional 28.8 percent of the issued common shares
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In January 2004, Abbott announced that it has entered into an
agreement to acquire all of the capital stock of TheraSense, Inc.,
a leader in the development, manufacturing and marketing of
blood glucose self-monitoring systems, for $1.2 billion in cash.
The completion of the acquisition is subject to approval by the
holders of a majority of TheraSense common stock, regulatory
approvals and customary closing conditions and is expected to
close in the second quarter of 2004. In addition, in January 2004,
Abbott acquired, for approximately $392 million in cash, the shares
of i-STAT Corporation, a leading manufacturer of point-of-care
diagnostic systems for blood analysis, which Abbott did not already
own. In 2004, Abbott expects to record a charge of approximately
$171 million for acquired in-process research and development,
the amount of which is subject to the final appraisal, and approxi-
mately $115 million for restructuring and integration costs in
connection with these acquisitions.

Financial Condition
Cash Flow

Net cash from operating activities amounted to $3.7 billion, $4.2 bil-
lion and $3.6 billion in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Net cash
from operating activities in 2003 was lower than 2002 due, in part, to
the payment of the Ross enteral nutritional settlement, as discussed
above. In 2003 and 2002, Abbott funded $200 million and $106 mil-
lion, respectively, to its main domestic pension plan and funding
to this plan in 2004 is expected to be between $250 million and
$300 million. Abbott expects pension funding for its main domestic
pension plan over the next three to five years to be between
$200 million and $400 million annually.

The acquisitions of TheraSense and i-STAT in 2004 will be
financed through a combination of operating cash flow, domestic
commercial paper borrowings and long-term debt. In addition,
$1.650 billion of long-term debt is due to be paid in July 2004 that
Abbott will fund out of operating cash flow and domestic commer-
cial paper borrowings. Abbott expects to retain approximately
$750 million of proceeds from borrowings that will be assumed
by Hospira as a result of the spin-off. Abbott intends to use these
proceeds to reduce domestic commercial paper borrowings.

Debt and Capital

At December 31, 2003, Abbott’s long-term debt rating was AA by
Standard and Poor’s and A1 by Moody’s Investors Service. Abbott
has readily available financial resources, including unused lines of
credit of $3.0 billion, which support domestic commercial paper
borrowing arrangements.
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of Hokuriku Seiyaku Co., Ltd., resulting in Abbott owning substan-
tially all of the common shares of Hokuriku Seiyaku Co., Ltd. The
aggregate cash purchase price ($586 million) of these strategic busi-
ness and technology acquisitions resulted in a pretax charge for
acquired in-process research and development of approximately
$108 million, intangible assets of approximately $145 million and
non-tax deductible goodwill of approximately $257 million.
Acquired intangible assets, primarily product technology, are amor-
tized over 4 to 13 years (average of approximately 8 years). Had
these acquisitions taken place on January 1 of the previous year,
consolidated sales and income would not have been significantly
different from reported amounts.

On March 2, 2001, Abbott acquired, for cash, the pharmaceutical
business of BASF, which included the global operations of Knoll
Pharmaceuticals, for approximately $7.2 billion. This acquisition
was financed primarily with short- and long-term debt and is
accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. The
acquisition cost has been allocated to intangible assets, $3.5 billion;
goodwill, $2.4 billion; acquired in-process research and develop-
ment, $1.2 billion; and net tangible assets, $0.1 billion, based
on an independent appraisal of fair values. Product rights for
marketed products are amortized on a straight-line basis over
10 to 16 years (average 13 years), and goodwill was amortized in
2001 on a straight-line basis over 20 years. Acquired in-process
research and development was charged to expense in 2001. The net
tangible assets acquired consist primarily of property and equip-
ment of approximately $630 million, trade accounts receivable
of approximately $402 million, and inventories of approximately
$275 million, net of assumed liabilities, primarily trade accounts
payable and other liabilities. Prior to the date of acquisition, Abbott
began to plan for the integration and restructuring of the business.
In 2001 and 2002, Abbott formally approved several restructuring
plans and certain costs of implementing formally approved plans
have been included as goodwill. Had this acquisition taken place
on January 1, 2000, pro forma consolidated sales for 2001 would
have been $16.7 billion, pro forma net income would have been
$2.3 billion and pro forma diluted earnings per share would
have been $1.46.

In 2001, Abbott acquired, for cash, all of the outstanding common
stock of Vysis, Inc., a leading genomic disease management com-
pany. Of the cash acquisition cost of approximately $362 million,
$162 million was allocated to developed technology, which is amor-
tized over 15 years, and $143 million was charged against earnings
in 2001 for acquired in-process research and development. The
remaining acquisition cost was allocated to net tangible assets and
goodwill. Had this acquisition taken place on January 1 of the
previous year, consolidated sales and income would not have been
significantly different from reported amounts.
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In the fourth quarter of 2003, Abbott issued long-term yen
denominated notes in the amount of approximately $926 million
that mature from 2007 through 2013. Proceeds from these notes
were used to pay off short-term yen denominated borrowings and
to reduce domestic commercial paper borrowings.

Under a registration statement filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission in September 2003, Abbott issued $500 mil-
lion of long-term debt in February 2004. Abbott may issue up to
an additional $1.0 billion in the future in the form of debt under
the registration statement.

In June 2000, the Board of Directors authorized the purchase of 25
million shares of Abbott’s common stock. In 2000 and 2001, Abbott
purchased 10.6 million shares from this authorization for $482 mil-
lion. Common stock purchases were temporarily suspended in
January 2001, following Abbott’s announced acquisition of the
pharmaceutical business of BASF. In 2003, Abbott announced that
it plans to purchase the remaining 14.4 million shares from time to
time on the open market and purchased 2.7 million of its common
shares at a cost of $98 million. As of December 31, 2003, an addi-
tional 11.7 million shares may be purchased in future periods
under the September 2000 authorization by the Board of Directors.
In the first quarter of 2004, Abbott again purchased its common
stock on the open market under this authorization.

Working Capital

At December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, working capital was
$2.7 billion, $2.1 billion, and $492 million, respectively. The
increase in working capital in 2003 and 2002 versus 2001 was
primarily due to operating cash flows used to decrease short-term
domestic commercial paper borrowings incurred as a result of the
acquisition of the pharmaceutical business of BASF in 2001.

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures of $1.2 billion in 2003, $1.3 billion in 2002,
and $1.2 billion in 2001 were principally for upgrading and
expanding manufacturing, research and development, investments
in information technology and administrative support facilities in
all segments, and for laboratory instruments and hospital equip-
ment placed with customers. This level of capital expenditures is
expected to be lower in 2004 following the spin-off of Hospira. An
increased proportion of the capital expenditures will be dedicated
to the International and Pharmaceutical Products segment.

Restructuring Plans
(in millions of dollars)

In 2002, as discussed in Note 10, Abbott announced restructuring
plans to align Abbott’s global manufacturing operations with its
scientific focus and to achieve greater operating efficiencies in its
Diagnostic Products and International segments. In 2002, Abbott
recorded a pretax charge against earnings of $174, reflecting the

impairment of manufacturing facilities and other assets, and
employee severance charges. Approximately $83 is classified as
Cost of products sold, $5 as Research and development, and $86
as Selling, general and administrative. The restructuring plans
resulted in the elimination of approximately 2,100 net positions.
Employee groups covered under the restructuring plans included
manufacturing, research and development, and sales and adminis-
trative-related functions. The accrued restructuring reserve balance
at December 31, 2003 of approximately $23 relates primarily to
employee severance obligations, which, by local laws must be
paid over time.

In 2001 and 2002, as discussed in Note 10, Abbott implemented
restructuring plans related to the operations of the acquired phar-
maceutical business of BASF and the closing of one of Abbott’s
manufacturing operations. In 2001, of the total $207 restructuring
charges, $156 was recorded as goodwill associated with the acquisi-
tion of the pharmaceutical business of BASF. Of the amount
expensed, approximately $36 is classified as Cost of products sold,
$2 as Research and development, and $13 as Selling, general and
administrative. Employee-related costs are primarily severance pay,
relocation of former BASF employees and outplacement services.
The restructuring plans resulted in the elimination of approxi-
mately 2,400 positions. Employee groups covered under the
restructuring plans included manufacturing, research and develop-
ment, and sales and administrative-related functions. In 2002,
a $59 restructuring charge was recorded as goodwill associated
with the acquisition of the pharmaceutical business of BASF.
The accrued restructuring reserve balance at December 31, 2003
of approximately $11 relates primarily to employee severance
obligations, which, by local laws must be paid over time.

Contractual Obligations
(in millions of dollars)

Abbott has no material exposures to off-balance sheet arrange-
ments; no special purpose entities; nor activities that include
non-exchange-traded contracts accounted for at fair value. Abbott
has periodically entered into agreements in the ordinary course
of business, such as assignment of product rights, with other
companies which has resulted in Abbott becoming secondarily
liable for obligations that Abbott was previously primarily liable.
Since Abbott no longer maintains a business relationship with
the other parties, Abbott is unable to develop an estimate of the
maximum potential amount of future payments under these oblig-
ations. Based upon past experience, the likelihood of payments
under these agreements is remote. In addition, Abbott periodically
acquires small companies in which Abbott agrees to pay contingent
consideration based on attaining certain thresholds.
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Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 143,
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” which is effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2002. In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation
No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others.” This Interpretation requires the recognition of certain
guarantees as liabilities at fair market value and is effective for
guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. Adoption
of the provisions of the Statement and Interpretation did not have
a material effect on the financial statements of Abbott.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” SFAS No. 146 requires
that a liability for costs associated with an exit or disposal activity
be recognized and measured initially at fair value only when the
liability is incurred. SFAS No. 146 is effective for exit or disposal
activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002 and will not
have a material effect on the financial statements of Abbott. Abbott
accounted for the 2002 restructuring plans in accordance with
Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 94-3 and, accordingly,
charged to income in 2002 all appropriate exit costs for plans
approved by management before December 31, 2002. Accounting
for these restructuring plans under SFAS No. 146 would have
resulted in some of the expenses that were recorded in 2002 being
recorded in 2003. However, a significant amount of expenses
would have been charged against income in 2002 under either
EITF No. 94-3 or SFAS No. 146.

Legislative Issues

On December 8, 2003, the President of the United States signed the
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act
of 2003. Among the provisions of the Act is a provision granting a
subsidy to sponsors of retirement medical plans with prescription
drug coverage when the benefit is at least actuarially equivalent to
the Medicare Part D benefit. The Financial Accounting Standards
Board has not issued final rules specifying how sponsors should
account for this subsidy. Abbott has not estimated the expected
favorable impact of the legislation on its retiree medical obligations
or costs, and therefore has not reflected any effect of the legislation
in the financial statements. The final rules, when issued by the
Financial Accounting Standards Board, could require companies,
including Abbott, to retroactively change amounts included in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Abbott’s primary markets are highly competitive and subject
to substantial government regulation. Abbott expects debate to
continue at both the federal and state levels over the availability,
method of delivery, and payment for health care products and ser-
vices. If additional legislation is enacted, it could have the effect of
reducing prices, or reducing the rate of price increases, for medical
products and services. International operations are also subject to
a significant degree of government regulation. It is not possible to
predict the extent to which Abbott or the health care industry in
general might be adversely affected by these factors in the future.

Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 —
A Caution Concerning Forward-Looking Statements

Under the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995, Abbott cautions investors that any forward-
looking statements or projections made by Abbott, including those
made in this document, are subject to risks and uncertainties that
may cause actual results to differ materially from those projected.
Economic, competitive, governmental, technological and other fac-
tors that may affect Abbott’s operations are discussed in Exhibit
99.1 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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The following table summarizes Abbott’s estimated
contractual obligations:

Payment Due By Period

2009 and

Total 2004 2005–2006 2007–2008 Thereafter

Long-term debt, including current maturities $5,033 $1,657 $2,009 $÷«950 $417

Operating lease obligations 381 77 141 102 61

Capitalized auto lease obligations 99 33 66 — —

Purchase commitments (1) 2,402 2,295 66 27 14

Other long-term liabilities reflected on the consolidated balance sheet (2) 697 — 248 103 346

Total $8,612 $4,062 $2,530 $1,182 $838

(1) Purchase commitments are for purchases made in the normal course of business to meet operational and capital expenditure requirements.

(2) Excludes approximately $1.9 billion of other long-term liabilities related primarily to post-employment benefit plans. See Note 5 for disclosures relating to these plans.
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(dollars in millions except per share data)

Year Ended December 31 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993

Summary of Operations:

Net Sales $÷19,680.6 17,684.7 16,285.2 13,745.9 13,177.6 12,512.7 11,889.3 11,018.0 10,013.7 9,156.2 8,407.8

Cost of products sold $÷÷9,473.4 8,506.3 7,748.4 6,238.6 5,977.2 5,406.6 5,052.3 4,736.8 4,330.2 3,995.9 3,684.8

Research and development (1) $÷÷1,733.5 1,561.8 1,577.6 1,351.0 1,194.0 1,228.8 1,307.4 1,209.3 1,076.1 966.6 882.6

Selling, general and administrative $÷÷5,050.9 3,978.8 3,734.9 2,894.2 2,857.1 2,759.8 2,695.8 2,464.8 2,233.9 2,056.7 1,989.1

Operating earnings (1) $÷÷3,322.5 3,530.1 1,894.0 3,400.6 3,149.4 3,117.6 2,833.9 2,607.2 2,373.4 2,137.0 1,921.3

Interest expense $÷÷÷«188.1 238.9 307.3 113.9 144.7 160.0 134.6 95.6 69.7 49.7 54.3

Interest income $÷÷÷÷(42.0) (33.7) (72.6) (90.7) (62.9) (57.4) (49.1) (46.4) (52.3) (37.1) (37.8)

Other (income) expense, net $÷÷÷(558.0) (348.5) (223.9) (439.1) (329.3) (226.8) (186.3) (103.4) (30.2) (35.3) (35.7)

Earnings before taxes (1) $÷÷3,734.4 3,673.4 1,883.1 3,816.4 3,396.9 3,241.9 2,934.6 2,661.4 2,386.2 2,159.7 1,940.5

Taxes on earnings $÷÷÷«981.2 879.7 332.8 1,030.4 951.1 907.5 855.5 787.5 706.6 650.0 544.1

Net earnings $÷÷2,753.2 2,793.7 1,550.4 2,786.0 2,445.8 2,334.4 2,079.1 1,873.8 1,679.6 1,509.7 1,396.4

Basic earnings per common share $÷÷÷÷«1.76 1.79 1.00 1.80 1.59 1.52 1.34 1.19 1.05 .93 .84

Diluted earnings per common share $÷÷÷÷«1.75 1.78 0.99 1.78 1.57 1.50 1.32 1.18 1.04 .92 .84

Financial Position:

Working capital $÷÷2,650.9 2,119.6 492.4 3,078.7 1,903.0 623.9 38.4 167.7 475.9 407.3 495.6

Long-term investment securities $÷÷÷«406.4 250.8 647.2 638.0 954.8 967.8 764.3 752.9 439.2 330.7 221.8

Net property and equipment $÷÷6,281.8 5,828.1 5,551.5 4,816.9 4,770.1 4,742.9 4,572.0 4,462.9 4,250.5 3,923.7 3,511.8

Total assets $÷26,715.3 24,259.1 23,296.4 15,283.3 14,471.0 13,259.9 12,101.8 11,161.1 9,455.2 8,534.6 7,695.0

Long-term debt $÷÷3,452.3 4,274.0 4,335.5 1,076.4 1,336.8 1,339.7 938.0 933.1 435.7 287.1 306.8

Shareholders’ investment $÷13,072.3 10,664.6 9,059.4 8,570.9 7,427.6 5,753.6 5,036.3 4,852.4 4,437.1 4,058.4 3,680.6

Return on shareholders’ investment %÷÷÷÷÷«23.2 28.3 17.6 34.8 37.1 43.3 42.0 40.3 39.5 39.0 39.7

Book value per share $÷÷÷÷«8.36 6.82 5.83 5.54 4.80 3.76 3.26 3.11 2.80 2.52 2.24

Other Statistics:

Gross profit margin %÷÷÷÷÷«51.9 51.9 52.4 54.6 54.6 56.8 57.5 57.0 56.8 56.4 56.2

Research and development to net sales %÷÷÷÷÷÷«8.8 8.8 9.7 9.8 9.1 9.8 11.0 11.0 10.7 10.6 10.5

Net cash from operating activities $÷÷3,746.4 4,182.9 3,566.8 3,099.6 3,035.1 2,875.3 2,660.1 2,373.9 1,956.5 2,205.2 1,844.2

Capital expenditures $÷÷1,246.7 1,296.4 1,163.7 1,035.9 987.1 993.6 1,009.1 950.3 947.5 930.5 952.7

Cash dividends declared per common share $÷÷÷÷«÷.98 .94 .84 .76 .68 .60 .54 .48 .42 .38 .34

Common shares outstanding (in thousands) 1,564,518 1,563,068 1,554,530 1,545,934 1,547,020 1,530,672 1,542,585 1,561,751 1,587,404 1,614,898 1,642,260

Number of common shareholders 91,212 94,687 97,760 101,272 106,766 109,864 104,881 101,113 89,867 86,349 82,947

Number of employees 72,181 71,819 71,426 60,571 57,100 56,510 54,685 52,949 50,330 49,534 49,709

Sales per employee (in dollars) $÷«272,656 246,239 228,000 226,939 230,782 221,425 217,414 208,087 198,991 184,843 169,141

Market price per share – high $÷÷÷«47.15 58.00 57.17 56qf 535⁄16 501⁄16 34tk 2811⁄16 22ek« 17÷÷ 157⁄16«

Market price per share – low $÷÷÷«33.75 29.80 42.00 29ek 33÷« 32qs 24uk 191⁄16÷« 155⁄16« 1211⁄16 115⁄16«

Market price per share – close $÷÷÷«46.60 40.00 55.75 487⁄16 365⁄16 49÷« 32ef 25ek÷ 2013⁄16 165⁄16« 1413⁄16

(1) In 2002, Abbott also recorded a pretax charge of $108 for acquired in-process research and development related to the acquisitions of the cardiovascular stent business

of Biocompatibles International plc, certain cardiovascular stent technology rights from Medtronic, Inc. and an additional interest of the issued common shares of

Hokuriku Seiyaku Co., Ltd. In 2001, Abbott also recorded a pretax charge of $1,330 for acquired-in-process research and development related to the acquisitions of the

pharmaceutical business of BASF and of Vysis, Inc.
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1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993

13,177.6 12,512.7 11,889.3 11,018.0 10,013.7 9,156.2 8,407.8

5,977.2 5,406.6 5,052.3 4,736.8 4,330.2 3,995.9 3,684.8

1,194.0 1,228.8 1,307.4 1,209.3 1,076.1 966.6 882.6

2,857.1 2,759.8 2,695.8 2,464.8 2,233.9 2,056.7 1,989.1

3,149.4 3,117.6 2,833.9 2,607.2 2,373.4 2,137.0 1,921.3

144.7 160.0 134.6 95.6 69.7 49.7 54.3

(62.9) (57.4) (49.1) (46.4) (52.3) (37.1) (37.8)

(329.3) (226.8) (186.3) (103.4) (30.2) (35.3) (35.7)

3,396.9 3,241.9 2,934.6 2,661.4 2,386.2 2,159.7 1,940.5

951.1 907.5 855.5 787.5 706.6 650.0 544.1

2,445.8 2,334.4 2,079.1 1,873.8 1,679.6 1,509.7 1,396.4

1.59 1.52 1.34 1.19 1.05 .93 .84

1.57 1.50 1.32 1.18 1.04 .92 .84

1,903.0 623.9 38.4 167.7 475.9 407.3 495.6

954.8 967.8 764.3 752.9 439.2 330.7 221.8

4,770.1 4,742.9 4,572.0 4,462.9 4,250.5 3,923.7 3,511.8

14,471.0 13,259.9 12,101.8 11,161.1 9,455.2 8,534.6 7,695.0

1,336.8 1,339.7 938.0 933.1 435.7 287.1 306.8

7,427.6 5,753.6 5,036.3 4,852.4 4,437.1 4,058.4 3,680.6

37.1 43.3 42.0 40.3 39.5 39.0 39.7

4.80 3.76 3.26 3.11 2.80 2.52 2.24

54.6 56.8 57.5 57.0 56.8 56.4 56.2

9.1 9.8 11.0 11.0 10.7 10.6 10.5

3,035.1 2,875.3 2,660.1 2,373.9 1,956.5 2,205.2 1,844.2

987.1 993.6 1,009.1 950.3 947.5 930.5 952.7

.68 .60 .54 .48 .42 .38 .34

1,547,020 1,530,672 1,542,585 1,561,751 1,587,404 1,614,898 1,642,260

106,766 109,864 104,881 101,113 89,867 86,349 82,947

57,100 56,510 54,685 52,949 50,330 49,534 49,709

230,782 221,425 217,414 208,087 198,991 184,843 169,141

535⁄16 501⁄16 34tk 2811⁄16 22ek« 17÷÷ 157⁄16«

33÷« 32qs 24uk 191⁄16÷« 155⁄16« 1211⁄16 115⁄16«

365⁄16 49÷« 32ef 25ek÷ 2013⁄16 165⁄16« 1413⁄16
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Shareholder and Corporate Information

Stock Listing

The ticker symbol for Abbott Laboratories’

common stock is ABT. It is listed on the

New York, Chicago, Pacific, London and

Swiss exchanges. It is traded on the Boston,

Cincinnati and Philadelphia exchanges.

Quarterly Dividend Dates

Dividends are expected to be declared and

paid on the following schedule in 2004,

pending approval by the board of directors:

   

First 2/20 4/15 5/15     

Second 6/11 7/15 8/15     

Third 9/10 10/15 11/15    

Fourth 12/10 1/15/05 2/15/05 

Abbott Laboratories is an Illinois High

Impact Business and is located in a

U.S. federal Foreign Trade Sub-Zone

(Sub-Zone 22F). Dividends may be eligible

for a subtraction from base income for

Illinois income tax purposes. If you

have any questions, please contact your

tax advisor.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

The Abbott Laboratories Dividend

Reinvestment Plan offers registered share-

holders an opportunity to purchase

additional shares, commission-free, through

automatic dividend reinvestment and/or

optional cash investments. Interested

persons may contact the transfer agent,

call Abbott’s Investor Newsline or write

Abbott Shareholder Services.

Dividend Direct Deposit

Shareholders may have quarterly dividends

deposited directly into a checking or sav-

ings account at any financial institution

that participates in the Automated Clearing

House system. For more information,

please contact the transfer agent, call the

Investor Newsline or write Abbott

Shareholder Services.

Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of shareholders will be

held at Abbott Laboratories’ corporate

headquarters on Friday, April 23, 2004,

at 9 a.m. Questions regarding the annual

meeting may be directed to the

Corporate Secretary.

A copy of Abbott’s 2003 Form 10-K Annual

Report, as filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission, is available on the

Abbott Web site at www.abbott.com or by

contacting the Investor Newsline.

Investor Relations

Dept. 383, AP6D2

Shareholder Services

Dept. 312, AP6D2

Corporate Secretary

Dept. 364, AP6D2

Investor Newsline

(847) 937-7300

Abbott Laboratories

100 Abbott Park Road

Abbott Park, IL 60064-6400 U.S.A.

(847) 937-6100

Web Site

www.abbott.com

Global Citizenship Report

Visit www.abbott.com/citizenship to read

Abbott’s current global citizenship report.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

EquiServe

P.O. Box 43010

Providence, RI 02940-3010

(888) 332-2268

www.EquiServe.com

Shareholder Information

Shareholders with questions about their

accounts may contact the transfer agent,

call the Investor Newsline or write Abbott

Shareholder Services.

Individuals who would like to receive

additional information or have questions

regarding Abbott’s business activities may

call the Investor Newsline, write Abbott

Investor Relations or visit Abbott’s Web site.

Address Correction Requested

> Abbott trademarks and products in-licensed by Abbott are shown in italics in the text of this report. Together Rx and Herceptin are not trademarks of Abbott Laboratories.

© 2004, Abbott Laboratories

Printed on Recycled Paper

Some statements in this annual report may be forward-looking statements for purposes of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act

of 1995. Abbott cautions that these forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to

differ materially from those indicated in the forward-looking statements. Economic, competitive, governmental, technological and other

factors that may affect Abbott’s operations are discussed in Exhibit 99.1 of our Securities and Exchange Commission 2003 Form 10-K, and

are incorporated by reference. Forward-looking statements in this annual report should also be evaluated together with the disclosure

regarding Hospira contained in the Risk Factors section of Hospira’s Form 10 Registration Statement. Abbott and Hospira undertake no

obligation to release publicly any revisions to forward-looking statements as the result of subsequent events or developments.
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